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Anglian Water overview

Anglian Water provides water and
wastewater services under licence from
the Government. The quality of our service
and the prices we are able to charge our
customers are regulated by the Water
Services Regulation Authority (WSRA)

or Ofwat as it is more commonly known.

Key perfarmance indicators

Dnnking water’ — overall zonal comphance

2006 99 95%
2005 99 96%
Leakage?

2006/7 5 5m? per km/day (provisional)

2005/8 5 8m’ per km/day

2004/5 S 8m?* per km/day

industry average 2005/6 10 6m? per km/day

Qverall Performance Assessment (OPA) results?

2006/7 412 (provisicnal)
2005/6 388
2004/5 408

Accident Frequency Rate’

200877 039
2005/6 039

Operating expenditure* £m

2006/7 3247
2005/6 3144

Capital expenditure® £m

2 years to 31 March 2007 721 8 deterrmination
2 years to 31 March 2007 727 2 actual

' Dnnking Water results published in 2006 for calendar year 2005
* 20067 results subject to formal confirmation from Ofwat 1 autumn 2007
* Number of accdents per 100,000 hours worked
* For the appointed and non-appainted btsinesses
¢ Curmulative spend from 1 Apnl 2005 1o 31 March 2007
inflated by Construction Outputs Price Index (COPT)




The Anglian Water region

The Anghan Water region Source of supply
extends from the Humber to + groundwater aguifer
the Thames estuary and from ., /face water
Buckinghamshire to the east o reservorr
coast It also serves Hartlepool | pankside storage
The map shows the services « abstraction point
Anghian Water provides to
different areas of its region
Anglian Water's head office s Areas in which we provide
In Huntingdon, Cambndgeshire  wastewater services only
1 Severn Trent Water
2 Thames Water
3 Cambridge Water
4 Three Valleys Water
5 Essexand Suffolk Water
& Tendnng Hundred Water

Water

We provide more than one billion litres of high quality drinking water
to 4 2 million customers every day The water comes from reservoirrs,
underground reserves (aquifers) and via abstraction from rivers

Wastewater services

We receive approximately 980 million litres of wastewater a day from
5 5 million customers, including 1 2 million customers who receive
their water from other companies The wastewater s treated to a
high standard and returned to the environment via rivers or coastal
outlets The organic waste Is treated, dried and used in agricutture
as a natural, high quality fertiliser.

Objective

Our aspiration 1s to become a frontier company within the water
Industry We want to be known by our customers principally for the
reliability of our service We also want to be recognised as a leading
company in terms of managing growth in the region and the impact
of climate change
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Chief Executive’s statement

We are pleased to report another strong
operational and financial performance by
Anglian Water and success in maintaining
unrestricted supplies to our customers
despite challenging conditions.

Water resources

We are pleased to report another strong operaticnal
and finanaal performance by Anglian Water and success
in matntaining unrestricted supplies to our customers
despite challenging conditions

This posiion was achieved pnmanly as a result of maxmising
the amount of water pumped for storage, cur focus on
leakage and having almost 60 per cent of our customers
usIng a water meter

These measures, combined with the support of our
customers In reduang their water consumption, helped
ensure that restrictions seen 1n other parts of the country
were avoided Although we serve the dnest part of the UK,
there has not been a hosepipe ban since 1991

Groundwater in the south of the region fell below average
levels during the early part of the year, but returned to normal
levels in the avtumn and winter as rainfall increased This has
provided confidence that water levels at our reservoirs and
underground resources are secure to meet forecast demand
for 2007/8

Additional investment

Our customers used more water than expected last year As a
result, we will be investing an additional £50 rmithon beyond
the 2005-10 regulatory determination in schemes to iImprove
the secunty of supply to customers across our region

Of this, £40 million 15 1N recogmition of the higher revenues
generated as a result of the hot, dry summer weather
duning the last two years In addition, Anghan Water will
invest £10 rmillion generated from efficiencies

This additional investment will improve the secunty of the
water supply for customers in a number of towns across
the Anglian Water region, including Norwich, Peterborough,
Bedford, Wisbech, Ipswich, Newmarket and King's Lynn

It will also fund extensions to the existing metening

’

programme, particularly in parts of Suffolk, one of the
fastest-growing and driest parts of our region

Operational performance

Our focus on health and safety continued during the year
to good effect, and we were pleased to be recognised by the
Royal Society for Prevention of Acadents, which presented
us with a gold award

Anglian Water has consistently met Ofwat’s leakage targets
and had another very good year at tackling leakage in
2006/7 At5 5 cubic metres per kilometre of main per day,
Anghian Water's leakage is one of the lowest in the UK

Drinking water quahty for the calendar year remained high,
with 99 95 per cent of all water quality tests performed
complying with regulatory standards Overall microbiological
comphance for the penod remains at a high level

All 47 designated bathing waters in Anglian Water's region
passed the mandatory coliform standards of the Bathing
Water Directive This is the eighth time in the past 10 years
that 100 per cent comphance has been achieved Thirty-four
of the bathing waters (72 per cent} also passed the guideline
standard of the Directive {2005 83 per cent) This reduction
was largely due to adverse weather conditions during the
summer season

The Enwronment Agency published its latest assessment

of river water quality in the region 1n August 2006, relating
to the 2005 calendar year The assessment showed that

98 7 per cent of nvers’ biological quality was classed as
‘very good’ to ‘far' (2004 98 1 per cent} In B9 4 per cent
of the regron's nvers, chemical quality was in the "very good’
to ‘fair’ range (2004 90 4 per cent)

August and September 2006 saw significant flooding in parts
of the region, as intense summer storms overwhelmed

drainage systems in some areas Great Yarmouth was flooded
by two extreme storms, one of which equated to half of the




Financial highhghts

2007 2006 Change

fm im %

Turnover 9190 8657 +62
Operating profit 404 8 3596 +126
Operating cash flow 558 5 5288 +56

average winter rainfall falling in approxmately six hours
We expect that the region will see more of these erratic
weather conditions, which we believe are further ewdence
of cimate change

This represents a particular challenge for us due to our low
rainfall, tow-lying coasthne and the extensive, ecologically
sensitive wetlands in the region

Focus on customers

Our aim s to deliver a service that goes beyond what the
Regulator requires of us, to delvering a standard of service
that compares well with any major service provider We aim
to treat customers as if they have a choice of water supplier

This year we have implemented a number of initiatives to
enhance the level of service we prowde to our customers
These include the creation of the Inadent Service Manager
role and the introduction of a new Customer Suppart
Vehicle, which acts as a focal point for customers during
events such as floods and bursts

This report 15 one of three we have produced this year

We have also produced a Drinking Water Quality Summary
Report and a Commumity and Environment Report Please
see Inside front cover for more information

Financial performance

Turnover for the year increased by 6 2 per cent as a result
of the regulatory pricing formula, higher than normal
revenues due to the increase 1n demand during last
summer's dry weather and growth in customer numbers
This increase in revenue, toegether wath the reahisation of
cost efficiencies, contnbuted to operating profit increasing
by £45 2 milion {12 6 per cent) to £404 8 milkon

Capital expenditure

Gross capital expenditure for the year was £426 0 million,
£169 0 million of which was delivered by an alliance of six
partner companies working in dose co-operation wath Anglian
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Water The total capital investment in the first two years of
the penod was approxmately £727 0 million (at 2006/7 pnces),
shghtly higher than that assumed in the final determination

New ownership

On 23 November 2006, AWG Plc, the owner of Anghan
Water, was acquired by Osprey Acquisitions Lirmited (Osprey},
a consortwum of pension funds and long-term infrastructure
investors and fund managers

These investors are commutted and responsible owners who
have strong reputational and ethical standards The investors
have affirmed therr support for the management and
strategy of Anglian Water

OQutlook

It has been a demanding year for Anghan Water and the
industry in general However, | believe that we have performed
well in the face of these demands and | would like to take
this opportunity to thank all of my colleagues for their hard
work and commitment

Looking ahead to 2007/8, we remain focused on improving
customer service, increasing our efficiency and delvening
the remainder of our capital investment programme for
this asset management penod

We will also continue to develop our approach towards the
forthcoming regulatory review, which will determine delivery
requirements and charges for 2010-2015

As part of the review, Ofwat has requested that all companies
submit strategic direction statements covering therr objectives
for the next 25 years We welcome the increased regulatory
emphasis on long-term strategy and lock forward to talking to
our customers and other stakeholders &s we develop our plans

Jonson Cox
Chief Executive and Chasrman, Anghan Water Services Limited
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Operating and Financial Review

Anglian Water provides water and wastewater
services to more than five million domestic and
commercial customers in the east of England

and Hartlepool.

The Anglian Water region, the largest of any water company
in England and Wales, stretches from the Humber to the
Thames estuary and from Buckinghamshire to the east coast

The company aims to provide a high qualty, cost-effective
service to all s customers, whilst warking ta comply with,
or exceed, all relevant public health and environmental
standards

Overview of the Osprey consortium

General overview

Company structure and finanang

Anghan Water 1s the prinapal subsidiary of Anglian Water
Group Limited (AWG) AWG became the ultimate parent
company of the group following the acquisition of AWG
Pic by Osprey Acquisitions birited (Osprey)

Anglian Water Pic was first histed on the London Stock
Exchange in 1989 when the water industry in England and
Wales was privatised AWG Plc was subsequently delisted
from the Stock Exchange on 21 December 2006

Before the acquisiion by Osprey the proportion of Anglian
Water's financing provided by debt was 79 per cent
Followsng the acguisition, the decision was taken to increase
the geanng at the water company level to 83 per cent,
which rematns comfortably within the covenant levels
established to protect lenders

% ownership 323% 32 3% 19 3% 16 1%

QOngm Australia Canada Australia UK

Assets™ AS124bn C398bn A$10bn £57bn

Brief descnptron Colorual First State CPP Investment Board IFM {International A world leader in prrvate

Global Asset Management
1s the consclidated asset
management dmsign

of the Commonwealth
Bank of Austraha group

IS an investment
management firm
established to invest
funds receved from the
Canadian Pension Plan

Infrastructure) Wholesale
Trust 1s a fund that holds
Investments in international
nfrastructure assets
Ulumately owned by
Members Equity Bank

Pty Ltd

equity and venture
capital with a growing
presence In infrastructure
Listed on the London
Stock Exchange

“Assets under management as at September 2006




Market operations

Drinking water

Every day Anglian Water supphes more than one bilion
Iitres of high quality dnnking water to 4 2 mullion water
customers via 132 water treatment works and 37,000
kilometres of water mains

The water in the west of the region 15 primarily sourced
from reservorrs, the largest of which i1s Rutland Water
The east of the region relies principally on groundwater
reserves, known as aquifers

Two-thirds of the annual supply is used by households,
of which around 60 per cent are metered

Wastewater

Anghan Water collects and treats the water that customers
have used, returrung 1t to the enwronment via rivers and
coastal outlets The water 1s regularly sampled and tested
against strict Environment Agency standards

Approximately 980 million litres of wastewater are collected
each day from 5 5 million customers, including customers
who receve therr water from other companies Anglian
Water's sewerage network includes approximately 43,400
kilometres of pipes connected to 1,081 wastewater
treatrnent works Dunng the year we achieved certification
of our wastewater management system to the standard
required by 1SO 9001

The Anghan Water region

Anglian Water serves an area of 27,500 square kilometres,
the largest region served by any water company in England
and Wales Employing approximately 3,600 people in 2006/7,
Anghan Water s one of the region’s biggest employers
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As well as being the largest and dnest region, 1t 1s also
one of the country’s fastest-growng regions in terms of
housing growth Nearly a3 million new homes are planned
to be built in our region over the next 25 years, partly
accelerated by the Community and Local Government
Office plans aimed at addressing housing shortages in
the Southeast Meeting this growing demand is a key
priority for Anglian Water

Corporate responsibility

Anghan Water treats corporate responsibility as an inherent
part of the way we do business We support and actively
encourage strategies and behaviours that demonstrate

our commitment to the long-term viability of our business
This reinforces our behef that business deasions should
take into account social and environmental issues, as well
as economic ones

We have incorporated our corporate responsibility objectives
nto the business strategy and this year we have focused
our activities pnincipally on five broad aims

=> To understand chmate change, what it means to the
Anglian Water region and contribute to reduaing our
impact on the environment

= Seek to have a sustainable impact on our environment

=> Reduce our dependency on fossil fuels and achieve
energy and fuel effiaency

=> To be recognised by our stakeholders and customers
for our contnbution to the commuruties we serve

=> To engage our employees and supply chain

For more information about our corporate responsibility
pnonties and performance, please refer to our separate
Community and Environment Report (see inside front cover)
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Management

Structure

Anglian Water hasits own board of directors, which, as

at June 2007, consisted of five Executive Directors and three
independent Non-Executive Directors Two of the Executive
Directors, the Group Chief Executive and Group Finance
Director, are also directors of the ultimate parent company
of Anghan Water, Anghan Water Group Limited (AWG)

Duning the year, Roger Witcomb, a former Non-Executive
Director of the Anghan Water board resigned to become
a director of AWG We welcomed Christopher Garnett

to the Anghan Water board as a Non-Executive Director
in December 2006 A former Chief Executive Officer of
Great North Eastern Railways, he brings valuable expenence
of public service businesses David Hipple resigned as an
Executive Dwrector on 12 June 2007, following which
Scott Langhurst assumed the responsibilibes of the
company Finance Director A full hst of board directors

15 on page 29

The Anglian Water board 1s responsible for the strategy
and overall management of the water company
Day-to-day operations are led by the Operating
Executive of Anghan Water

Eight out of 25 of the results
of our employee opinion survey
placed us among the top 10
compantes in MORI’s data set

The chart opposite shows
Employee Engagement Index,
derived from key questions
from the survey

People

Employee survey

We seek the opirion of our employees through an annual
opinion survey, conducted by Ipsos MORI, which enables us
to benchmark ourselves against other leading companies
in eight of our top 25 measures, our results for 2007
placed us among the top 10 companies in MORI's data set
(see opposite) We use some of the results to compile an
overall Employee Engagement Index, which tests the overall
motivation and commitment of our workforce We are
pleased that our lndex score for 2007 showed a staustically
significant two per cent nise over the previous year

Qccupational Health and Safety

Anghan Water 1s committed to continuous improvemnent
n its Occupational Health and Safety (OH&S}) performance
OH&S 15 the first item on the agenda for all meetings,

with performance updates reported monthly to the
Anghan Water board

We have made good progress in QH&S performance over
the past four years and were awarded a prestigious Royal
Society for the Prevention of Acaidents (RoSPA) Gold Award
for OH&S 1n 2007




Employee engagement index
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2007 Trend
Anglian Water | 6a%| +2
% positve
Anghian Water interested in employee well-being I 59% I +8
Anghan Water provides good vatue for money ] 58% +6
Jab sausfaction | 64% 2
Acts in a way consistent with what the company wants to be I 61% +5
Understands contnbution to team aims i 87% -1
Has a responsibility 1n delivenng outstanding customer service ] 83% +1
Plays a part in company s success | 66% -1

Sample 2 121 employees (57 per cent)
Note Two per cent change is very significant

A key area for the future 1s our determination 1o achieve
OHSAS 18001 (the internationally recogrised quality
assurance system for OH&S) certification of our OH&S
management system In order to do so we must demonstrate
that our policies and procedures meet the required standards
by OHSAS 18001, achieve continuous improvement and
pass the regular audits required to maintain certification

This year we completely rewewed our approach to nsk
assessment and recently launched a new, simpler approach
to nisk assessment

We remain committed to reduang work-related injunes
and ill health Comprehensive occupational health support,
including private health care and an employee assistance
programme, 15 avallable to all our employees

Health and safety performance

Target
Measure 2003/4  2004/5 2005/6 2006/7 20078
Acadent
Frequency Rate* 048 042 039 039 034
Days lost
per employee 993 825 720 700 700

*Accident Frequency Rate = number of reportable acadents
per 100,000 hours worked

We will continue setting challenging targets for the future
to reduce acadents, injuries and il health Dunng the year
we put In place a detailed health and safety action plan, an
annual statement of intent to target key improvement areas

Competitive environment

Water companies are able to offer water to farge industnal
or commeraal customers outside theiwr regional boundaries
through the creation of what is known as inset appointments

In December 2005, Ofwat announced a new water supply
licensing regime in England and Wales, whereby licensees
will be able to supply water to business customers who use
at least 50 megalitres of water a year

To date, seven hicences have been granted by Ofwat,
including one to Osprey Water, previously known as
Hartlepool Water Limited

Since the new licensing regime came into effect, no business
customers have opted to switch supplier Ofwat conducted
a review that identified some legislative changes were
required to overcome some of the restraints to competition
Subsequently, Ofwat will be launching a consultation in

the summaer of 2007 As part of this consultation process,
Ofwat plans to seek stakeholders’ views on the future

of competibion in the water and sewerage industry

We have sought to support the water supply licensing regime
through active engagement with Ofwat and licensees
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Relationships with domestic customers

Customer surveys

The latest results from our customer survey conducted in
March 2007 showed 83 per cent of customers were ‘very'
or “farrly’ satisfied with Anglian Water's overall service for the
last quarter penod of 2007 The average overall satisfaction
for the year was 86 per cent, while 64 per cent of customers
said they were satisfted with overall value for money

In addition we carry out weekly customer expenence surveys
of around 500 customers in order to measure customer
satisfaction followang customer contact wath us, the results
of which are used to improve customer service

Customer overall satisfaction from service provided

200677 86% | |
2005/6 85% |
2004/5 85% |
2003/4 87%] |
2002/3 88%| |

Scurce Millward Brown

Customer Service Index

The focus on customer service has been supported by

a new 'Customer Service Index’ (CS1), which combines

a number of key measurements into a single measure
The CSI performance 1s communicated to all staff every
month Duning the first year of the CS} we outperformed
our own stretching target by 8 3 per cent

A major step forward 1n relation to iImproving customer
service was the replacement of our existing billing system
See page 11 for further information

More information on our approach to customer service and
our customer service Initiatives are detailed in our separate
Community and Environment Report




This year we won a Business in
the Community ‘Big Tick” award
for excellence in promoting our
corporate responsibility agenda
with our supply chain partners

Bad debts

The level of bad debt within the water industry has
continued to nise and 1s a problem faced by alt water
companies Anglian Water has looked at various imtiatives
to reduce the amount of money owed by customers

For those customers who are willing but unable to pay,

we have introduced a number of tanffs designed for
vulnerable customers Anghan Water also funds the Anghan
Water Trust 1o help those customers keep up therr payments
with utility bills During the year the company made a
payment of £1 0 million (2006 £1 0 milhion) to the fund

For customers who are able to pay but choose not to, we
have a comprehensive range of debt recovery procedures

Relationships with business customers

As part of our commitment to business customers we offer
a service called Optimiser The Optimiser Team consists of
tndustnal Process Engineers and Water Efficiency Assessors
who are available to prowide specialist adwice to assist our
business customers to maximise water efficiency, assess
and refine on-site wastewater treatment processes and
minimise water and wastewater services costs

The Opuimiser Team helps businesses invesuigate the impact
of any product changes, adwses on process problems,
recommend actions to improve water and wastewater
process and helps implernent the changes This work often
brings operational and capacity benefits to our networks

09

in one example, through the Optimiser Team’s study and
recommendations, a potato processing plant chent was
able to reduce its water charges by £8,000 per annum

In addition, the team identfied that the company could
reduce 1ts trade effluent charges by around £48,000 1f it
could improve the compliance of its effluent against consents
In doing so, the company improved its environmental
performance and reduced its nsk of prosecution due

to a breach of its trade effluent consent

To date the team has helped more than 100 businesses
optiruse ther water and wastewater processes and comply
with their trade effluent consents

Relationships with suppliers

Priar to 2000, Anghan Water had a suppher base thought
to be around 15,000 companies Since 2000, we have
been actively reducmng this number and as at the end

of March 2007, had 2,500 suppliers

Anghan Water subscnibes to the Achtilles Utilities Vendor
Database, which 1s used as the basis of our supplier selection
process Anghan Water 1s alsc a Patron Member of the
Venfy scheme, a utility sector accreditation scheme aimed
at improving the health and safety and envircnmental
standards of the supply chain, and has a stated policy to
use only Venfy-accredited suppliers for high-risk actvities

Dunng the past year, we launched a Suppler Relationship
Management Programme wath eight of our top 50 supphers
The programme 1s aimed at ensurning alignment of suppliers’
agendas with ours, as well as generating additional value
from exsting relationships through the elimination of waste
and improved collaboration This has proven to be very
successful and we plan to extend the iniiative wath other
partners in 2007/8

In 2006, Anghan Water won an HBOS/BITC Big Tick Award
for Excellence in promoting corporate responsibility with
ns supply chain partners




Operating and Financtal Review continued

Annual Report and Accounts 2007

anghanwater co uk

The ‘@0ne’ Alhance formed in 2004 between Anglian
Water and six partners, 1s now well-established and last
year delivered a £169 0 milhon programme of more than

140 indvidual projects

In addition to the Alliance, we currently have additional
delwvery partners who are focusing on carrying out a

Between 2005 and 2010, Anghan Water 1s investing
a further £1 5 billion {at 2002/3 prices) in our services,
in addition to the £4 6 bilhon that we have invested

since privatisation in 1989

£90 millron Biosolids Programme and a programme

to replace 243,000 water meters by 2010

Regulatory environment

Anghan Water supplies water and wastewater servces under
licence from the Government's economic regulator, Ofwat

On 1 Apnil 2006 the role of the Director General of Ofwat
was replaced by a board, the Water Services Regulation
Authority, which 1s now responsible for the economic

Ofwat makes decisions independently of the Government,
but 1t works closely with other regulators, see table below

Price Review 2009 (PRO9)
In the coming year, Anglian Water will be engaging
with customers and other key stakeholders to help set

the company’s long-term strategic vision We wall publish
our Strategic Direction Statement by December 2007

outhning our 25-year strategic plan This will be an

regulation of the water and sewerage tndustry in England
and Wales The new Chief Executive of the Authonty,
Regina Finn, assumed responsibilities in October 2006

The industry operates on five-year Asset Management
Pertods The current Asset Management Period, known
as AMP4, began in Apnl 2005 and ends in March 2010

Quality regulators

The Drinking Water Inspectorate

{DW1) 15 the regulator with responsibidity
tfor dunlung water guality, which s part
of Defra {(Department of Environment
Food and Rural Affairs)

The Envircnment Agency oversees
enwironmental performance and In
particular regulates the way in which
water 1s abstracted fram nvers and
reservoirs and then returned o nvers
or the sea after 1 has been cleaned

Natura! England*' works to enhance
brodversity landscapes and wildhfe in
rural urban coastal and marine areas
1t promotes access, receeation and
public well-being and contributes to
the way natural resources are managed

' compnsing English Nature and elements
of the Countryside Agency and Rurat
Developrment Service

Dedra evaluates and sets quality and
enwvronmental standards according
to both UK Government and EU
Directives, using quality regulators
for expert opinion and consultation

All water companies in England
and Wales operate wathin a special
regulatory framework presenbed
by the Water Industry Act 1991

The economic regulator Qfwat 1s
respansible for setting limits on prices
that water compames can charge and
for overseeing overall performance

In April 2006, Ofwat was changed to
the Water Services Regulation Authonty
The Authonty ¢consists of a Chairman
and at least two other members

Water companues

important document for Anglian Water's customers,
regulators and stakeholders and will provide a foundation
for the company’s next five-year business plan

Customer representatives

The Consumer Council for Water
{CCWater) replaced WaterVoice
in October 2005

{OwWater represents the interests
of customers i respect of price
service and value for money

It also (nvestigates complaints
{frem customers

CCOWater 1s an independent body
funded by the Department for
Enwtronment, Food and Rural Affaus

Other customer groups




Achievements during the year

Operational Management Centre

Dunng 2005, we made a significant change in the way
we manage our aperations by creating an Operational
Management Centre (OMC), which s located alongside
our custorner service department In simple terms the
OMC s a central point of operational control for scheduling
work far field staff, improving efficiency, managing nsk
and improving customer senice We have already seen how
the OMC improved our service levels and capaaty to handle
major incidents, for example during the floods in Great
Yarmouth and a major supply Interruption tn Scunthorpe

The OMC has enabled a number of critical strategic
developments Under the new operating model we are
better able to integrate asset operations and management,
understand the nsks of non-intervention, make whole-life
costing decisions and increase the ratio of planned to
reactive work

Implementation of new customer billing system
Another major achievement in 2006/7 was the
introduction of a new IT software system, a module

of SAP, for managing customer information The SAP-ISU
project has brought together customer and billing data
which had previcusly been held on 14 separate systems
This consalidation process has enabled us to improve the
service we offer customers while improving the efficiency
of our customer managament processes

Installation of the new system was challenging and involved
many teams across the business However, we were pleased
that the implementation of the new system had minimal
impact on customers and no significant impact on the
tmehness or quality of billing

Delivery of the regulated capital programme

and re-investing efficencies

We are making good progress in delivering the outputs
of our capital programme for the current five-year period

To improve water quality for customers we completed the
mains replacement scheme at Harleston, Norfolk, six more
nitrate removal projects and two schemes to reduce nickel
concentrations For sewerage custormners we have completed
the scheme to provide secondary treatment at Aldeburgh,
Sufiolk, removed 142 properties from the sewer flooding
register and prowided first-time sewerage services to 1,232
properties at 10 locations

We have achteved efficiencies in the AMP4 capital
programme to date and these have been invested in
additional capital outputs Total capital expenditure over
the first two years of the programme 1s 101 per cent

of the assumed spend (based on 2006/7 prices)

We expenenced significant upward operating cost
pressures duning 2006/7 These arose from a number

of factors, including nses in rates, fuel and power costs
We succeeded i offsetting these cost pressures through
a number of iitiatives, outperforming the operating
expenditure assumptions of the determination by more
than two per cent We spent more than assurned in the
determination in sewerage services, partly as a result of
our efforts to improve wastewater treatment comphance,
but offset this wath efficencies In the water service
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Additional investment to improve the resihence

of our networks

The ability to satisfy increased demand from our large
measured customer base, largely dunng the summer of
2006, resulted in significant additional revenue This became
apparent in the first half of the year and we shared this
knowledge with Ofwat We believe the benefits of our
water resource management, through metenng and leakage
detection investment should be reflected in shareholder
returns, but it 1s equally important to protect the company’s
abihty to deliver hugh levels of customer service

As a result, we deaided that the most responsible course
of action would be to use the additional revenue, in part,
to put forward and implement plans to increase the
resilience of the supply delivery system and a £40 0 mullion
programme i1s now under way This action will contribute
to ensunng that future generations will be able to enjoy the
same resibence in our network that our future customers
expect of a responsible utility

The Anghan Water team accepting three Green Apple
awards for their work on the reintroduction of the osprey,
improvements in bathing water quality and biosolids

John Whitungdale, MP for
Maldon and Chelmsford,
attending the launch of a
jont Anglian Water/Water
Research Centre tral of new
and different ways in which
restaurants can dispose

of fats, oils and greases

Picture shows a typical builld
up of fats, oils and grease
In the sewerage network

Treatment of sewage sludge {(biosohds)

Sewage sludge I1s a by-product of the wastewater treatment
process, and is also known as biosolids Anglian Water
uses a number of methods for managing sludge, the
most iImportant and sustainable of which 1s recycling

it to land Around 90 per cent of treated biosohd 1s used

as a hugh quality fertliser on agneultural land

A proportion of the biosolid 1s further treated and dned
before being seld as a fertihser Nutn-bio 15 Anghan Water's
trademark name for this fertiliser Anglian Water offers

the Nutn-bio product and service to farmers throughout

its region

Anglian Water has received 150 9001 and 14001
accreditation for our biosolids recycling actmities, supporting
the delivery of a high quality and sustainable sernce to

our farming customers The osolids recycling operation
also achieved a (Silver) Green Apple award duning the
2006/7 year for our bigsolids recycling operation




Water quality

Bathing water quality - mandatory standard

2006 100%

2005 100%

River water quahty* — biological qualty ('very good' to ‘fair’)

2005 98 7% ||
2004 98 1%] |

River water quality* — chemical quality (*very good’ to ‘fair’)

2005 89 4% |
2004 90 4% |

*Rever quality results published tn August 2006 for 2005 calendar year

Operational performance

Overall Performance Assessment

An Overall Performance Assessment (OPA} score 15 calculated
each year by Ofwat and prowvides a comparative overview
of water company performance [t covers measures of
water supply, sewerage service, customer service and
environmental performance

Separately, Ofwat makes annual assessments of the
serviceability of comparves’ assets In 2005/6 Anghan
Water's sewerage assets were assessed as "detenorating’
Dunng 2006/7 we made good progress In returning
our sewerage assets to ‘stable’ serviceability The key
changes were a marked improvement 1n the comphance
of wastewater treatment works with discharge consents
and a continued reduction In sewer collapses due to

a sewer renovation programme

Anglian Water‘s OPA score for 2005/6 was 388, ranking

it fifth We antiapate a score of around 412 {or 2006/7 on
the basis of better wastewater treatment works compliance
and faster response to water supply interruptions  The final
OPA score will be published in autumn 2007

We are committed to providing our customers wath a
high level of service and a consistent supply of wholesome

drinking water This 1s demonstrated by excellent comphance

1n 2006 with the water quality standards of the Drinking
Water Regulations Dninking water quality remained high
throughout the year, with an averall mean zonal comphance
of 99 95 per cent for 2006 Overall microbiological
comphance remained fugh, wath 98 91 per cent of
samples in 2006 complying with mandatory standards

In Hartlepool, water quality compliance figures also continued

to remain excellent in 2006, with an overall mean zonal
compliance of 100 per cent Overall microbiological
comphance for 2006 was also 100 per cent

Continuous monitoring 1s carned out at our treatment

works and other key sites to complement the extensive
laboratory sampling and analysis, which includes water
from customers’ taps

All water companies have a duty to inform the Drinking
Water Inspectorate (DWI1) of any events that have affected,
or are likely to affect, dnnking water quality The regulator
then assesses the tnformation provided to determine
whether the event is significant or not If it 1s deemed
significant then 1t is classified as an incdent and
enforcement action against the company concerned may
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also be considered Of the events notified by Anglian Water

to the Regulator in 2006, eight were classified as incidents
This information 1s detailed in the Chief Inspector’s Report,
which 1s available at www dwi govuk

We invest continually to ensure that the high standard

of drinking water guality 1s maintained Ofwat reviews
proposals and determines the level of investment Dunng
AMP4, Anglian Water 15 investing almast £100 0 mullion
on drinking water quality improvements This programme
of work consists of 31 separate schemes, 10 of which were
completed in 2006/7 Anglian Water 15 set to delwer the
remainder of the schemes through to 2010

The completed schemes included the installation of

new treatment processes at a number of water treatment
works to ensure comphance with the standards for rutrate,
nickel and, at one site, for the pestiade tnetazine, along
with a programme of water mans refurbishment in
Hatleston, Norfolk

Anglian Water 1s now planning for the next investment
period {AMPS) covenng the period from 2010 to 2015

Further details of the way in which investment by water
companes 1s regulated can be obtained from the Ofwat
website at www ofwat govuk
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Operating and Financial Review continued

Anghan Water has translated all of the regulatory
requirements, as well as internal standards, into a set of
detalled policies, standards and procedures for maintaining
water supply hygiene These documents provide a robust nisk
management framework to ensure dnnking water quahty 1
assured A web-based tool has been developed to support
our nisk assessment, management and control process,
available throughout Anghan Water via our intranet

To assist in providing dnnking water quality infermation
to customers, the Anghan Water website has been
updated A post code search function provides both

a drinking water summary and a detailed report for each
supply zone In a recent Dnnking Water Inspectorate
anonymous customer service survey, Anghan Water
was judged to have prowded a ‘full and comprehensive’
response, which included information available on

the internet at www anghanwater co uk

Anglhian Water leakage performance - cubic metres
per klometre of main per day, compared to other
water companies

Sour¢e Ofwat Secunty of supply, leakage
and water efficency report, 2005-06

Water resources

The Anglian Water region receives only two-thirds of the
long-term average rainfall of England and Wales, making
it the driest region in the UK

The 2005/6 winter was characterised by low rainfall,
adding to the rainfall deficit that began n November 2004
As a result reservorr levels and groundwater levels were
below average in spring 2006 We implemented our
Drought Plan to ensure that appropnate measures were
taken to maintain secure supplies without the need for
restrictions Peak demands dunng hot dry weather in July
2006 were the highest recorded since 1996 and were met
without significant problems A succession of months with
above average ranfall from August 2006 to March 2007
marked the end of the drought conditions in the Southeast
of England The above-average rainfall over the winter
2006/7 recharged water resources to normal levels

Anglian Water manages the demand for water

by a combination of leakage control, metering and
the promotion of the efficient use of water through
the "Waterwise’ message

Leakage

Anghan Water's leakage target, as agreed by Ofwat, s set
at what 1s known as the economic level of leakage This s the
paint at which it would cost mare to make further reductions
in leakage than 1o produce the water from another source

Anglian Water's economic level of leakage 1s 215 megalitres
per day, around a third of which 1s estimated to be from
customers’ pipes Anghan Water's leakage rate in 2005/6,
as confurmed by Ofwat, was 214 megalitres per day

As a result of our focus on leakage, we have consistently
achteved one of the best records in the industry At 5 8 cubic
metres per kilometre of main per day, it s almost half the
industry average of 10 6 cubic metres per kilometre of
main per day (2005/6 data)

Thes year we have invested more than £8 million in leakage
management, including deploying some 100 leak detection
technioans throughout the region to proactively locate leaks
in our network This amount also includes an additional

£2 milion used to target leakage in our more vulnerable
areas to the south of the region such as Essex, Suffolk

and Milton Keynes




Peak demands during hot dry
weather in July 2006 were the
highest recorded since 1996
and were met without
significant problems

We have als¢ continued to help customers detect and
repair leaks on their properties on a one-off basis as part
of our Watertight promise

Our provisional leakage figure for 2006/7, due to be
announced officially by Ofwat later this year, 1s 202 megalitres
per day {5 5 cubic metres per kilometre of main per day)
We believe that this result demonstrates the effectiveness of
the approach we have taken, which has been an important
factor i avoiding water restnctions for our customers

Waterwise messages

The south of the region, and in particular the Ipswich area,
was the focus of the enhanced water efficiency campaign
during the spnng of 2006 in response to the nisk of drought

The campaign used TV personality Bill Oddie to promote
water savings through local media of radio, press and bus
advertising The campargn was short-listed for the Marketing
Intiative of the Year Award at the 2006 Utility industry
Achievernent Awards

As part of Anghan Water's Waterwise media campaign,
a water float toured the region to demonstrate visually
how much water the average family uses in a day
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Metering

At almost 60 per cent, Anghan Water has one of the
highest proportions of metered customers of any water
company in England and Wales

In addition, work has commenced on the installation of
up to 40,000 water meters in the Ipswich area to increase
measured water supply In an area of water scarcity
Customers can choose whether to switch to a metered
supply, however by doing 50, they can save on average
around £100 per year on their water bills

The chart below demonstrates how the combined
approach of leakage reduction and the promotion of
metenng and enhanced water efficiency has meant that
Anghan Water supplies roughly the same amount of water
to the region as it did at prvatisation in 1989 - around
1,200 megalitres per day Dunng this penod the number
of households supphed has grown by nearly a quarter

Distnbution 1nput versus connected properties

Source Anglian Water data 2007

A meter being installed at a customer's heome More than
24,000 customers switched to using water meters in 2006/7

Bathing water quality

Dunng the 2006 bathing season, Anglian Water once
again achieved 100 per cent comphiance with the mandatory
bathing water standards, the eighth time in 10 years

The ughter guideline standards were met at 72 per cent
of the beaches (2005 83 per cent, 2004 &5 per cent)

The lower result was due to wetter weather conditions in
August making the coastlines more vulnerable to pollution

River water quahty

The Environment Agency published its latest assessment

of river water quality in the region in August 2006, relating
to the 2005 calendar year The assessment showed that

98 7 per cent of nvers’ biological quality was classed as
‘very good’ to ‘farr’ {2004 98 1 per cent) In 89 4 per cent
of the region’s nvers, chemical quality was in the ‘very good’
to ‘fair’ range {2004 90 4 per cent)




Biodversity Action Plan

Anglian Water’s Brodwersity Action Plan 1s aimed at
protecting the habitats and species on our sites From

a site management perspective, the backbone of the plan
15 Anghan Water's commitment to the management of
our Sites of Special Scientific Interest (5SS} As the natton's
most important conservation sites, S55Is deserve our focus
and Anghan Water 1s working with partners, such as the
Wildlife Trust and Natural England, to get these sites into
favourable condition The company’s sites have already met
the Government’s 2010 target {or SSSI condition, with

96 per cent being in ‘favourable’ or 'recovenng’ status

Anglan Water's most renowned species project 1s the
osprey reintroduction at Rutland Water This year has
seen another milestone, with the return from migration
of the first Rutland-born ospreys The continutng success
of this high-profile project demonstrates the company's
long-term commutment to the environment

Long-term water resource planning

We produced our Water Resources Plan in 2004 to descibe
our strategy for managing water resources durning the 25-year
penod 2005 to 2030 Investment through the supply-demand
programme for 2005 to 2010 was approved in the 2004
Pertadic Review Major investment to increase the capacity
to treat water stored in our Rutfand Water reservoir has
progressed duning 2006 Plans o extend the new water
treatment works at Wing in Rutland, and to create habitat
at the reservorr to protect its legal status as a European
designated conservation site, have been approved by

the planning authority, subject to ratification under

the Habitats Regulations

Anghan Water 15 prepanng a new draft Water Resources
Management Plan duning 2007 for publication in April
2008, and consultation as required by the Water Act 2003
The plan will cover the penod 2010 to 2035 and will
address the challenges of regional economic growth,
forecasts for the impact of chmate change and the
potential reduction of water avatable for abstraction
through the implementation of environmental legislation
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Energy management
Energy accounts for 15 per cent of our total operating
costs and, therefore, 15 a target for efficiency savings

Where we use electricity

Wastewater treatrment 38%
Water treatment 27%
Wastewater collection 14%
Water distnbution 7%
Water sourcing 14%
Offices 1%

In 2006, Anghan Water used 748 gigawatt-hours (GWh}
of electnaty, nearly two per cent of which {14 1 GWh) was
generated from our own renewable sources We have set
an ambitious target o reduce energy costs by 20 per cent
by 2010 {from the 2006/7 baseline) A new Energy Team
was created in 2006

During 2006/7 the Team predicts that it will have achieved

== Savings of £4 1 million in Anghan Water's overall
energy costs

== Savings of 13 6 GWh through efficiency measures

=> Reductions of 11,945 tonnes of carbon emissions

We are continuing to focus attention on generating
renewable power through the capture and use of the gases
created 1n the wastewater treatment process, using Combined
Heat and Power (CHP) units

In 2007/8 we will be commssioning five new CHP
engines al our wastewater treatment works We are also
developing electnaity generation using wind power in the
long-term More information on our energy management
and targets 1s contained 1n our separate Commurity and
Enwvironment Report
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We are increasing our
Investment in low-carbon fuels
and technologies and increasing
our energy efficiency across
the business

Principal nsks and uncertainties

Anglian Water 1s exposed (o a number of commercial
nisks and uncertainties that could have a matenal impact
on our operations, financial condition or reputation
Where possible, we look at measures to mitigate these
rnisks However, we recognise that some of these factors
are beyond our direct control The hst below detalls the
principal nsks and uncertainties we face as a business

Legislative changes
Changes in law in the areas in which we operate could
have an adverse effect on our business and operations

We continue to monitor and seek to mfluence proposed
new European and UK legislation which we believe will
have a potential impact on the business

A number of Directives have had or will have a large effect
on how we operate In all cases we are working closely with
the key regulatory bodies to ensure all investments In this
area are cost beneficial to the company and our customers
and achieved in a sustainable way These indude

Water Framework Directive {(WFD)

The WFD 1s the most substantial prece of EC water legislation
to date The WFD (2000/60/EC) came into force in December
2000 and became UK law 1n December 2003 The WFD
requires ‘good” status for all bodies of water by 2015

Meeting WFD objectives will require coordinated action
and investment by a large number of sectors The cost of
meeting the WFD will be funded through penodic review
processes as approprate




Bathing Water Directive

The revised Bathing Water Directive came into force on
24 March 2006 with the overall objective remarming the
protection of public health while bathing 1t now gives
more significance to improving beach management
practices and the standardisation of the mformation
provided to bathers across Europe

Member states have two years in which to adopt the
revised Cirective into domestic law

The Directive sets three “pass’ standards, ‘Excellent’, 'Good’
and 'Sufficient’ and one ‘fail’ standard, 'Poor’ Member
states will be required to meet "Sufficient’ status at all
designated waters by the end of the 2015 bathing season

Blue Flags are currently awarded to those resorts with
appropnate faahties and which achieve the existing guideline
standard for water quality We believe that the Blue Flag
water qualty requirement will move to the revised Directives
highest standard of *Excellent’

Given the timescales for comphance, accounting for the
new Directive will feature i our subrmissions for the next
Penodic Review We are currently undertaking a modelling
exercise to assess the expected level of compliance with
the new Directrve and will be using this to shape our
Investment strategy

Drving through floodwater in Great Yarmouth during a
storm, September 2006 Picture courtesy of Archant Norfolk
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Climate Change Bill

The Chmate Change Bill 1s currently in draft form The Bill
will be the first of its kind in any country which sets out

a framework for moving the UK to a low-carbon economy

Consequently for Anglian Water this will include increasing
our investment in low-carbon fuels, technologies, such

as wind and Combined Heat and Power processes, and
increasing our energy effiaency across the business

One of the key issues for Anglian Water 1s how we achieve
the quality improvements required by new Direclives,
such as those outlined above, while reducing our energy
use and CO; emissions

Chmate change

Chmate change s a senous challenge for Anghan Water
Extreme weather conditions, together wath increased
demand from customers, will affect our water resources,
water quality and biodiversity Many of our treatment works
are situated close to the coast or on flood plains Both
coastlines and flood plains, and subsequently our assets
and infrastructure, will be increasingly vulnerable to nsing sea
levels, more intense storms and flooding These conditions
could affect our ability to prowide water and wastewater
services We are currently assessing our existing assets

and infrastructure to priontise actions and tackle the

most vulnerable sites and infrastructure first

Anglian Water's Chmate Change Action Plan includes
research into the impact of cimate change and measures
to adapt to these changes

More information on the impacts of chmate change for
Anglian Water and the region we serve and how we are
adapting to this change, 1s detalled in our separate
Community and Environment Report
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Energy management Ernvironmental inaidents

Energy costs represent a key nsk to Anglian Water's One of Anghan Water's key objectives 15 to minimise the
operating effinency Anghan Water 1s one of the largest impact of our operations on the environment Unfortunately,
energy users in the east of England due to the energy gven the scale of the company’s operations, covenng an area
required to treat water and wastewater and pump 1t of 27,500 square klometres, there can be instances of fallure

around the flat region of east Angla
During the financial year 2006/7, the Environment Agency
with the help of Anghan Water's dedicated Energy Tearn, brought five court actions aganst Anghan Water {or six

we continue to focus on iImproving energy efficiency pollution incidents Anghan Water pleaded guilty in all cases
and increasing renewable power generation through
the development of a wind generation programme Fines from the six conwictions totalled £58,000
and Combined Heat and Power {CHP) processes (2005/6 £44,500) Anglian Water works closely with

the Environment Agency to learn the lessons from such
Regulatory relationships incidents and to strive to prevent further iInadents

We strive continually to improve our relationships and

understanding of regulatary activities Improving working Pensions

relationships helps minimise the nsk of communication Anglian Water closed the defined benefit {(final salary)

breakdown and threats to our operating licence pension scheme to new employees in 2002 Employees
have subsequently been offered the opporturuty to join
a defined contribution scheme

The defined benefit {final salary) scherne remains a financial
nisk, with continued exposure to investment and mortahty
nsk We are working closely with the Trustees, the in-house
Treasury Team and our adwvisers to develop solutions for
managing nvestment nsk and to manage the expected
improvements in longevity
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Examples of communication matenals used to raise
awareness among employees of the need to be energy
efficient and how they can contnibute

Bad debts

The level of debt more than one year old continues to nise,
which means a further increase in the bad debt provision
In response however, the company has augmented its
Debt Recovery team and introduced a number of intiatives
to reduce the bad debt charge in future

Business continuity

Continuous improvernent and testing of business continuity
plans aims to ensure that we can effectively manage the
challenges of UK and globa! threats to our business actrvities
Global warming, terronsm and pandemic disease outbreaks
remain threats that we must strive to mitigate, through
investment in business resilience planning

Asset fallure

The failure of a key asset could cause significant disruption
to our services and may result in a breach of hicence, or incur
adverse regulatory action andfor financial consequences
While we have stringent contingency plans in place, it may
not always be possible to prevent such inadences However,
we continue to invest appropnately in the secunty of our
network to prevent such occurrences
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Adoption of pnvate drains and sewers

The Government has announced its intention, In principle, to
transfer the ownership of private drains and sewers to water
compares, although decisions remain to be taken on timing
and scope While we welcome such a move for customers
to whom it apphes, as it will clanfy the sitvation with regard
to responsibility and ownership of sewers and drains, it wall
have a matenal increase In costs for Anghan Water Through
a pilot project we are seeking to obtain better information
on private sewers to improve the qualty of cost esimates
for our PROY subnussion
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Financial performance

Anglan Water Senaces Umited is part of the Anglian Water
Group The company operates on an arm's-length basis
from other companies within the group The finanaal
results for the year ending March 2007 are presented

on a consoldated basis for the company and its subsichary
company Anglan Water Services Finanang Plc (AWSF)

The financia! results have been prepared 1n accordance with
UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP}

The company’s activities are regulated by the Water
Industry Act 1991 (which consolidated that part of the
Water Act 1989 relating to water supply and sewerage)
and the condittans of an Instrument of Appointment
(the hcence) granted to the company by the Secretary
of State for the Environment on 1 September 1989

With certain exceptions, the regulatory provisions do not
apply to business actvities that are not connected with
the carrying out of the water and sewerage functions
These business actmties are referred to as non-appointed
businesses (see note 3 on page 70}

Operating and Financial Review continued

Under Condrtion F of the licence the company 15 obliged
to provide the Water Services Regulation Authonty {WSRA)
with additional accounting information to that contained
in the statutory financial statements This information s
presented in the regulatory accounts on pages 62 to 85

Operating results
The consohdated profit and loss account, as presented
on page 32, 1s summarnised in Table 1 below

Table 1
2007 2006 Movement
£m fm %
Turnover 9190 8657 +62
Operating profit 4048 3596  +126
Net interest payable and
other finance income (519) (625 -170
Profit before tax 3529 2971 +188
Taxation (178) {(492) -638
Profit after tax 3351 2479 352
Dvidends (443 1) (3057) +449
Loss for the financial year (1080) (578) +869

In order to ad understanding of the accounts, a pro forma
grofit and loss account 15 provided in Table 2 nght

in this profit and loss account, the interest recevable

by the group from Anghan Water Services Holdings Ltd
{see note 5 on page 41} and the inter-company dvdend
paid {see note 8 on page 43) by the group and retained
wathin the Anglian Water Services Financing (AWSF) group
(see Directors’ report on page 28) of £193 1 million

(2006 £240 7 milhon), have been ehminated
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Table 2
2007 2006 Movement
£m fm )
Turnover 9190 8657 +62
Qperating profit 4048 3596 +126
Net interest payable and
other finance income {245 0) {255 b) -4 1
Profit before tax 1598 1040 +537
Taxation {178 (492) -638
Profit after tax 142 0 548 +1591
Dwadends {2500) (650) +2846
Loss for the finanaial year {1080} (102) +9588

Anghan Water's finanaal performance showed a continuing
improvement in 2006/7 compared to the previous year

Turnover increased by 6 2 per cent as a result of the
requlatory pricing formula, higher than normal reverues
due to the effect of the dry weather in the early part of

the summer 1n 2006 and growth in customer numbers
This net increase in revenue of £53 3 milion, tegether with
the realisation of cost effioences, contributed to an increase
i operating profit of 12 6 per cent (£45 2 million)

.

Price increases (before RPI*) set by the Regulator
for 2005 to 2010

2005/6  2006/7 2007/8 2008/9 2009/10
AnghanWater 38% 00% 28% 27% 27%
WaSC**average 94% 40% 34% 27% 22%

*Retall Pnce Index
**Water and sewerage company

Source Ofwat data




Anghan Water has adopted a Capital Alhance model for
delivering its capital investment programme The Alliance is
made up of Anghan Water and six partners in a collaborative
and integrated team wath common objectives and incentives
Its purpose 1s to deliver programmes of work as quickly and
efficiently as possible

Operating expenditure for the year (excluding

depreciation) increased by 3 3 per cent to £324 7 mallion
(2006 £314 4 milhon} This was due to upward pressure
from costs associated with flooding in the penod, power
and rates Included in operating costs are £3 4 million
(2006 Enil) of breakage costs associated with the early
termination of employee share-based payment schemes,
and a further £3 1 milhon (2006 £0 9 million) of employee
share-based payments pnimarily due to the increase in share
pnce of AWG Plc following the initial offer made by Osprey
These costs were mitigated by savings from a number of
efficiency imtiatives Overall, operating expenditure as a
percentage of turnover decreased shghtly from 36 3 per cent
to 35 3 per cent

Depreciation was down shghtly from £191 7 million in
2005/6 to £183 5 million, pnmanly as a result of there
being no charge an assets that came to the end of their
depreciation lives in 2005/6 This more than offset the
upward effect of new assets comrmissioned in the year
The depreciation charge includes £52 5 million (2006
£51 0 million) of infrastructure renewals charge (IRC),
which was up £1 5 million compared with the previous
year due to inflation

Taxation costs decreased from £49 2 milhon in 2006 to

£17 8 mullion 1n 2007 This was due to favourable movements
1n discount rates used to calculate the deferred tax charge,
and increased capital allowances being available by wirtue
of prior year disclaimers

Net interest payable and other finance income per Table 2
{excluding interest recevable on an inter-company loan,
see note 5 on page 41) reduced from £255 6 million in
2006 to £245 0 million 1n 2007 This reflects the reduction
in the cost of debt achieved through refinancing in the last
two years, and the FRS 17 pension credit ansing from the
difference between interest receivable on pension assets
and nterest payable on pension habilities
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Capital expenditure

Gross capital expenditure for the year was £426 0 milhon,
£169 0 milhon of which was delivered by an alliance of
six partner compames working in close co-operation with
Anglian Water The total capital investment in the first
two years of the Asset Management Period was
approximately £727 million

Efficiency challenge

Ofwat's Ainal Determination for the current Asset
Management Penod, estabhshed the lowest price increases
of any water and wastewater company in England and Wales
for Anglian Water It also set a number of challenging
efficiency targets

In response to the effictency targets and known additional
cost pressures from ncreases in energy costs, nfrastructure
renewals and pensions, the management team has put

in place the framework and detaled plans to address

these challenges

As a first step, the company carried out a restructunng
programme in the 2004/5 financial year, saving approxmately
£10 mulllon per annum 1n operating costs, beginning In

the financial year 2005/6 Dunng 2006/7 further efficency
savings came from a range of projects, including the
centralisation of operations, the management of energy
purchasing and usage, a four-year agreement on pay and
pension costs, re-tendenng of IT and telecommunications’
contracts, and programmes to reduce customer bad debt




Operating and Financial Review continued

Annual Report and Accounts 2007

anglianwater co uk

Financial needs and resources

At 31 March 2007 the group had net borrowings

of £3,896 2 milion, an increase of £358 9 million over
the prior year Net borrowings are a mixture of fixed,
index-linked and vanable rate debt of £4,450 1 million
and cash and deposits of £553 9 millon The increased
net borrowings comprise a net increase of £411 3 million
in loans and associated costs and a net increase of

£52 4 millon in cash and deposits

The business generated a net cash inflow from operating
actiaties of £558 5 milhon 1n 2007 (2006 £528 8 million)
The group, through its financing subsidiary AWSF, raised
£550 rullion (before debt 1ssue costs) in the current year
Of this, £500 0 millkon was index-linked and the balance
of £50 0 million was at floating rate This was used partly
to refinance existing, more expensive debt and to achieve
a higher level of geaning following the Osprey acquisiion

Shareholder returns

Dividends of £443 1 million (2006 £305 7 million) have
been paid and committed at 51 52 pence per share
(2006 35 55 pence per share)

Of the above, £193 1 million (2006 £240 7 millon) is
payable to Anglian Water Sernces Holdings Limited in order
for 1t to service the interest payable to the company on the
inter-company loan of £1,609 1 milhon and £250 0 million
{2006 £65 0 million} 15 payable outside the AWSF group
The dvidend payable outside the AWSF group equates

to 29 07 pence per share (2006 7 56 pence per share}

The directors have proposed a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2007 of 4 07 pence per share, which

15 a total of £35 O milhion This dividend has not been
accounted for within the current year financial statements
as it was approved and paid after the year-end

Part of the impact of the Osprey acquisition was that a special
dividend of £215 0 milhon was pard 1n 2006/7 to increase
leverage to around 83 per cent In future the overall amount
of our normal dvidends will not exceed the free cash flow
(defined as operating cash flow less interest and capital
maintenance payments) generated by Anghan Water and
in practice will be limited to a net debt to regulatory capital
value gearing ratio of 83 per cent The dividends declared
or paid will not imgair the ability of the company to finance
the Appointed Business, and the dwdend policy 1s
compliant with condition F of the hcence

Liquidity

The company’s cbjective 1s to maintain flexibibty,
diversification and continuity of funding through access
to different markets and debt instruments At 31 March
2007 the company held cash, deposits and current asset
investments of £553 9 milion (2006 £501 5 milhon)
and had undrawn commutted facilities of £225 0 miilion
{2006 £225 0 milhon) These resources are matntained
to ensure hiquidity and the continuation of the company's
mvestment programme  The matunty profile of the
company’s borrowings 1s set cut in note 16 on pages
47 to 51 of the accounts

In addition, the company has access to £328 0 million

of hquidity faclities (2006 £333 0 million), consisting

of £252 0 milkion to finance debt service costs and

£76 0 milhon to finance operating expenditure and
maintenance capital expenditure in the event that the
company was in default on 1ts debt ebligations and had
nsuffiaent hquidity A BBB-rated faciity of £50 rmillion

was set up duning the year and was fully drawn down

at 31 March 2007 All facilities are accessed under a loan
agreement between the company, AWSF and Deutsche
Trustee Cornpany Ltd (as Agent and Trustee for nself and
each of the Finance Parties to the Global Secured Medium
Term Note Programme} dated 30 July 2002 This agreement
guarantees that any facilities drawn by AWSF will be passed
directly on to the company upon utihsation of the fachty

Interest rates

The company’s policy, as agreed by the board, 15 to achieve
an optmum mix of funding at indexed (to RPl), fixed and
floating rates of interest At the year-end, taking into account
interest rate swaps, 48 6 per cent (2006 43 3 per cent)

of the company's borrowings were at rates indexed to RPI,
42 5 per cent (2006 48 2 per cent) were at fixed rates

and 8 9 per cent (2006 8 5 per cent) were at floating rates
This includes the use of interest rate swaps to manage the
company’s exposure to tnterest rate fluctuations




This year we donated £1 million
to the Anglian Water Trust Fund,
an independent charity that aims
to contribute to the fight against
poverty within the Anglian Water
region See www awtf org uk.

Credit nsk

The company’'s main credit nsk 15 1n relation to trade
debtors and 15 managed by regular review of problem
accounts Due to the statutory requirement to provide
a service, credit checks are not generally performed
on domestic customers, where the rnisk 1s spread over
a large number of low-value customer accounts

Donations

Duning the year the company made a payment of

£1 0 mithon {2006 £1 0 nullion) to the Anghian Water
Trust Fund The company also donated £40,000
(2006 £40,000) to WaterAid, and the fundraising
committee raised a further £98,000 {2006 £66,000)

Pension funding

Pension scheme funding levels have continued to improve,
with the FRS 17 defiat at 31 March 2007 standing at
£15 9 million for all schemes, compared to £35 1 million
at 31 March 2006 This reflects the improved market
conditions since the previous year-end and the favourable
movement In discount rates

Regulatory accounts

The regulatory accounts are set out on pages 62 to 85
These show the results of Anghan Water on a non-
consolidated basis and provide an analysts of the
appointed {regulated) and non-appointed businesses

Turnover of the appointed business

For the 2006/7, the Final Determination assumed turnover
of £860 milion (expressed at 2006/7 prices} Anglian Water
Services’ appointed business outturn for the year was
£909 millton The out-performance of £49 million s
attnbutable to two principal factors as set out below

=> Higher than expected household demand due
to a combination of last summer’s dry months,
and increased usage throughout the year

=> Higher than expected demand from businesses in
the region as result of growth above expected levels

In recognition of the higher than anticipated revenues,
Anghan Water will be investing an additional £50 milhion
in schernes to improve the secunty of supply to customers
across the region (see page 2)

Atypical costs

Operating costs for the appointed business were

£324 0 million (2006 £310 6 mulhon) This includes
atypical costs (as defined by Ofwat) of £7 5 milhon, which
comprses primanly costs assooated with the acquisiion by

25

Osprey and abnormal costs assocated with unusual weather

conditions such as floods and drought conditions

Current cost depreciation

The current cost depreciation charge — as disclosed
in the regulatory accounts — was £236 3 mullion
{2006 £228 1 millon)
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Anghan Water board of directors

Anglian Water board of directors

Chief Executive and Chairman

Jonson Cox

Jonson Cox was appointed Group Chief Executive of

AWG Plcin fanuary 2004 He gained experience in the
water sector as a main Board Director of Kelda Group Plc
from 1994 to 2000 He led Kelda's commercial business
from 1992 to 1996 He was Managing Director of Yorkshire
Water, the prinaipal business of Kelda Plc from 1996 to
2000, delivering a successful turnaround of Yorkshire Water
after s well publicised water supply difficulties in 1995

He was Chief Operating Officer of Railtrack Plc from
Qctober 2000 to 2001 He was Chief Executive of Valpak
Lrmited from 2002 to 2003, a business service provider

to the major UK retailers 1n hus early career he had a number
of management roles within Shell from 1979 to 1992

Jonson Cox joined AWG in January 2004 and led a three-
year turnaround, culminating in the acquisition of AWG
by the Osprey consortium of infrastructure investors

in November 2006

In 2005 Jonson Cox was invited to join the Prince of Wales’
Corporate Leaders Group, a panel of 12 Chief Executive
Officers adwising the UK Government on chmate change

He serves as a Non-Executive Director of the board
of Wincanton Ple, a FTSE 250 logistics company

Executive Directors

Peter Simpson

Chief Operating Officer

Peter Simpson was appointed Chief Operating Officer

in Novenber 2004 He previously held positions within the
international dwision of AWG, including Regional Director for
Europe based in the Czech Republic and Senior Vice President
of Operations based 1n the USA Peter 1s a Chartered Water
and Enwvironmental Manager and a Chartered Safety and
Health Practitioner He also holds an MBA from Warwick
Business School

Jean Spencer

Director of Regulation

Jean Spencer was appomted as Director of Regulation

in May 2004 Prior to joining Anglian Water, she held

a number of posttions with Yorkshire Water and Kelda,
including Head of Regulation, Head of Internal Audit and
Regulatory and Accounting Controller A qualified chartered
accountant, Jean began her career at Grant Thornton in
1981 In 1984 she joined the Audit Cormmuission, leaving

n 1989 to join Yorkshire Water

Chris Newsome

Director of Asset Management

Chnis Newsome was appointed in September 2004

He joined Anglian Water from Yorkshire Water where

he held the offices of Network Technology Manager

from 1990 to 1991, Water Systems Manager from 1991
to 1993, General Manager - Investment from 1996 to 2000
and more recently Head of Investment He Is a chartered
avil engineer, 2 member of the Institute of Cwil Engineers
and member of the Chartered Institute of Water and
Environmental Management He also holds an MBA
from Manchester Business School




Dawid Hipple

Finance Director

Dawvid Hipple was appointed to the board of Anghan
Water in November 2001 He previously held the office

of Accounting Manager, Finance and Performance Manager
and Head of Performance of Anghan Water Prior to joining
Anghan Water he held a number of finance roles in the
Electronics and Retall Sectors He imiially worked in the
accounting profession qualifying with Ernst and Young and
subsequently worked overseas with Coopers and Lybrand
He became a Member of the Insutute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales in 1981 Dawd Hipple
resigned as an Executive Director on 12 June 2007

Scott Longhurst

Group Finance Dicector

Scott Longhurst was appointed Group Finance Director
of AWG in November 2004 Before joiming AWG, he held
a number of positions with TXU Corporation between
2000 and November 2004, including Chief Finanaal Officer
and Senior Vice President, Oncor Group, USA and Group
Financial Controller and Chief Accounting Officer, TXU
Corporation Between 1991 and 2000 he held a number
of UK and international financial and commeraial roles wath
Royal DutchyShell Group including Chief Financial Officer
of ol products joint ventures in Saudi Arabia between 1997
and 2000 He 15 a Fellow of the Institute ¢f Chartered
Accountants 1in England and Wales
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Napier

Robert Napier was appointed in February 2002

He held the offices of Finance Director of Fison PIc’s
global pharmaceuticals division and Finance Director, Joint
Managing Director, Managing Director and Chief Executive
of Redland Plc He is currently Chairman of the Met Office,
having recently retired after eight years as Chief Executive
of WWF-UK Robert 1s also Chairman of Governors of
Sedbergh School He was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director of English Partnerships in March 2004

John Watkinson

John Watkinson was appomnted in May 2005 He has
more than 20 years’ expenence in a vanety of executive
roles, encompassing buying, supply chain and operations,
for lugh-profile, brand-led retail businesses For most of
the 1990s, he held successive Operations Director roles
for both Habitat and Wallis In 1999, he joined Hamleys plc
as its Chuef Operating Officer In 2003, John led a successful
management buyout of the company and became the
Chiet Executive of the newly-formed Hamleys Group

In Novemnber 2005 he was appointed as Chief Executive
of Monsta Group Limited, a retail investment company,
which indudes the Jones Bootmaker footwear business

Chnstopher Garnett

Chnistopher Garnett was appeinted in December 2006

He has more than 20 years’ expenence In passenger transpon
and was for 10 years, until August 2006, Chief Executive
of Great North Eastern Railways (GNER) Before GNER he
was Commercial Director of Eurotunnel from 1991 until
1995 and before that was employed as Sector Director for
Sealink British Ferries operating ferry senvices from the UK
to the Continent Since retinng from GNER he has taken on
a number of ather responsihilities, including being a Board
Member for The Olympic Delivery Authonty, Board Member
for Transport for London and a Non-Executive Director

of Aggregate Industnes Ltd He s also Chairman of the
Future York Group and a member of the Adwsory Board

of the National Railway Museum
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Anglian Water ownership structure

[ Osprey consortium

I Anglian Water Group Limited
| AWG Flc ]
!
Anglian Water Senaces Holdings Limited
9 ; g I

Anglhan Water Services Overseas Holdings Lirited

T
Anglan Water Services Umited' |
T
Anghan Water Sensces Financing Plc' I
— Directsubsidiary . . _ . indirect subsidiary

! Collectively known as the Anglian Water Services Group
for which cansolidated accounts are prepared

The directors present their report and the audited financial
staternents of Anglian Water Services Limited (the company}
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Business review

On 23 November 2006, the ulimate parent company

of Anghan Water Services Limited, being AWG Plc, was
acquired by Osprey Acquisitions Limited As a consequence
of this, the utumate parent company of Anglan Water
Services Limited became Anghan Water Group Limited
{formerly Osprey Jersey Holdco Limited), a company
registered In Jersey Anghan Water Group Limited 15 itself
owned by a consortium of investors consisting of the Canada
Pension Plan investment Board, Colomial First State Global
Asset Management, Industry Funds Management, and 31
Group Plc The Anglian Water ownership structure 1s detailed
above The information that fulfils the requirement of the
business review, and a summary of the group’s performance,
future praspects and key nsk management pohcies are
included in the Chief Executive's statement and the
Operating and Financial Review on pages 2 to 25

AWS Financing Group (AWSFG})

Common Terms Agreement !
The company has a Common Terms Agreement (CTA) with i
its debt investors

The CTA sets out the terms and conditions of the company’s
borrowing and the ongoing management of its Global
Secured Medium Term Note (GSMTN) programme The CTA
also sets out the finanaial and non-finanaal covenants that
must be complied wath (n relation to the GSMTN

Under the CTA, the following companies are
collectively known as the Anglian Water Services
Finanang Group (AWSFG)

Anglian Water Services Holdings Lmited

Anghan Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited
Anghan Water Services Limited

Anghan Water Services Financing Plc

R

Corporate governance

The corporate governance measures putin place at the
time of the finanaal restructunng in 2002 are designed

to ensure that the company has the means to conduct its
regulated business separately from other companies within
the Anghan Water Group, and that all dealings between
other companies within the Anglian Water Group and

the company are on an arm's-length basis




The company s required to maintan at least three
independent Non-Executive Directors, except for penods
where a temporary vacancy exists The board may include
directors who are also directors of other Anglian Water
Group companies However, the CTA requires that Executive
Drrectors in this category do not constitute a majonty

of the Executive Directors The constitutional documents
of each company within the AWSFG provide that all
conflicts of interest of directors must be disclosed and that
no director may vote on any contracts or arrangements
between the company and any other Anglan Water Group
company If hefshe 1s also a director of that Anghan Water
Group company

The processes for idenbfying, evaluating and managing
the significant nsks to the company and the company’s
internal control systems are regularly reviewed by the Audit
Comruttee, which reports its findings for consideration
by the board of Anglian Water Services

The Audit Committee s compnsed of Non-Executive Directors
and has written terms of reference The terms of reference
deal clearly wath the commuttee’s authonty and duties

The processes used by the committes to carry out its
duties include

=> A review of plans and reports prepared by internal
and external auditors
=> A review of reports ansing from the work of the
Risk Management Committee on the effectiveness
of nsk management
=> Discussions with management on significant nsk areas
=> The review of any significant 1ssues highlighted by the
Executive Directors, internal and external auditors

Financial instruments disclosures
Details are included on page 24 of the operating and
financial review and 1n note 16 of the financial statements

Principal activities

The company prowdes more than one bilhon litres

of danking water to 4 2 million customers every day
The water comes from a vanety of sources reservours,
underground reserves (aquifers) and abstraction from
rivers The company receives approximately 980 million
Iitres of wastewater per day from 5 5 milhon customers,
including customers who receive their water from other
companies The wastewater is treated to a high standard
and returned to the environment wia nivers or coastal
outlets The organic waste Is treated, dned and used

in agnculture as a natural fertihiser

Results and dividends

The profit and loss account on page 32 shows the group’s
results and profit for the year Details of dwidends paid duning
the year and proposed dwidends can be found on page 24
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Health and safety
Details are included on pages 6 and 7

Directors
The current directors of the company are listed below

Jonson Cox - Chuef Executive and Chairman

Peter Simpson —~ Executve Director

Chnis Newsome — Executwve Director

Jean Spencer — Executive Director

Scott Longhurst — Executive Director

Robert Napier - Independent Non-Executive Director
John Watkinson — Independent Non-Executive Director
Chnstopher Garnett — Independent Non-Executive Director

All of the directors served throughout the year, except for
Christopher Garnett, who was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on 1 December 2006 Roger Witcomb
resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director on

26 Apnl 2006 Dawid Hipple resigned as an Executive Director
on 12 June 2007 Followang Mr Hipple’s resignation Scott
Longhurst has assumed the responsibilities of the
company’s Finance Director

Chantable and politscal donations

Dunng the year the company made a payment of

£1 0 milhon (2006 £1 0 milion} to the Anghan Water
Trust Fund This amount 1s included as an operating cost
for statutory and regulatory accounts

The AWG Community Investment Scheme grve me five -
has given more than 11,000 hours (2006 6,000 hours)
of employee time, for the year ended 31 March 2007

to support local commumnity activities The scheme offers
employees the opportunity to take 30 hours of matched
work time to support thewr local communities in such
activities as working with schools, being a special constable
and working wath the Scout and Guiding movements

The company’s proviso 1s that participation also contnbutes
to persenal development objectives
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Following 1ts acquisition by
Osprey, Anghan Water Group
has introduced a loyalty savings
scheme, which enables employees
to potentially benefit from the
company's future performance

During the year, Anghan Water donated £40,000 to
WaterAud, its recognised chanty Individual requests for
sponsorship were declined on the basis that the company’s
policy 1s to encourage community tnvolvement rather than
chanitable donations

No pohucal donations were made dunng the year

Research and development

The company has a continuing policy of undertaking market-
focused research and development on process plant, biosolids
treatment and other water and wastewater-related matters

Employees

Employees are kept informed of changes in the business
and general finanaial and economic factors influenaing the
company This is achieved through a systematic approach
to employee communication, which includes regular
briefings, presentations, electronic mailings and the
company magazine The company's intranet 1s also
widely used as a source of information

The company values the views of its employees and
consults with them and their representatives on a regular
basis about matters that may affect them The company
has a series of polices that both inform and guide

all employees on the company’s approach to a range

of ethical issues Procedures are in place to deal with
allegations of misconduct, harassment, bullying

and other inappropnate behaviour

The company also has a seres of family fnendly policies,
including such imiatives as flexible working hours,
home working, sabbaticals and career breaks

Before the takeover of AWG Plc by Osprey Acquisitions
Limited, a Sharesave Scheme and a Sharebuy Plan were
in place To replace these schemes the AWG loyalty savings
scheme has been introduced to enable employees to
potentially benefit from the company's future performance

The company values diversity within its workforce and

has put in place procedures ta ensure that itis an equal
opporturities employer All job applications are fully and
farrly considered, having regard only to the applicant's
aptitudes and abilities relevant to the role of the apphcant
In the event of disability, every effort 15 made to ensure that
employment continues and appropriate training 1s given
Career development and promotion of disabled people is,

as far as possible, identical to that of other employees

Policy on the payment of creditors

It 1s the company’s policy to provide suppliers of goods and
services with a statement of general conditions of contract
This document is available from the company’s Supply
Chain Management department In general, regional
purchasing agreements are in place with preferred suppliers
and the terms will apply to all transactions The company
abides by the terms of payment The company's average
creditor payment period at 31 March 2007 was 40 days
(2006 35 days)

Directors’ disclosures to auditors

In the case of each of the persons who are directors at

the time when the report 1s approved under Section 234ZA
of the Companies Act the following apphes

a) So far as the director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant
audit infermation of which the company's auditors
are unaware, and

b} He/she has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have
taken as a director in order to make himselffherself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the company’s auditors are aware of that information




Auditors

Under Section 386 of the Companies Act 1985, Anglian
Water Services Limited has an elective resolution in place
to dispense with the need to appoint auditors annually
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will continue to act as
auditors of the company

Annual General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 366A of the Companies Act 1985,
Anglian Water Services Limited has dispensed with the
obligation to hold an Annual General Meeting and,
pursuant to Section 252, the company has dispensed
with the requirement to lay the annual report and
accounts before the company in general meeting

By order of the board

M/

Clatre Russell

Joint Company Secretary

15 June 2007

Registered Office Anghan House,

Ambury Road, Huntington,

Cambndgeshire PE29 3NZ

Registered 1n England and Wales No 2366656
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directors’ responsibilities

Staternent of directors’ responsibilities

Company law requires the directors to prepare finanaal
statements for each finanaial year that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and the group
and of the profit of the group for that penod The directors
are required to prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis, unless it s Inappropriate to presume
that the company and group will continue in business

The directors confirm that suitable accounting policies
have been used and apphed consistently as set out in note 1
to the financral statements {Accounting policies} They also
confirm that reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates have been made in prepanng the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 and the
applicable accounting standards have been followed

The directors are responsible for ensuring that the

annual report and accounts are pubhished and where

they are published on the Internet, for maintenance

and tntegrity of the website Uncertainty regarding legal
requirements 1s compounded as infermation published

on the Internet 15 accessible in many countnes with different
legal requirements relating to the preparation and
dissemuination of financial statements

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the finanaal position of the company and the group and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Comparmes Act 1985 They are also responsible

for safeguarding the assets of the company and the group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregulanties
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Group profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 March

2007 2006
Notes fm im
2 Turnover 9190 8657
Operating costs
— Operating costs before depreciation (3247 (314 4)
— Depreciation net of amorbsation of grants and contributions (1895} (1917
3 Total operating costs (5142} {506 1)
4 Operating profit a04 8 3596
5 Net interest payable (59 3) 62 4
6 Other finance income/{charges} 74 (0 1)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 3529 297 1
7 Tax on profit on ordinary activities (17 8) (49 2)
Profit for the finanaal year 3351 247 9

Notes 1 to 27 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

There was no difference between both the profit on ordinary actvities before taxation and the profit for the financial year
stated above, and their histoncal cost equivalents




Group statement of total recognised gains and losses
for the year ended 31 March

Notes
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation
20 Actuanal gans recognised in the pension scheme
19 20 Movement on deferred tax relating to the actuarial gain iy the pension scheme

Deferred tax on share based payments
Total recogmised gains and losses relating to the year

Notes 1 to 27 are an integral part of these consolidated finanaial statements
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2007 2006
£m fm
3351 2479
14 8 88 ¢
(51} (26 5)
— 38
344 8 3132
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Statutory accounts continued

Notes

"
12

15,16
15

16
17

20
20

22
23

Group and company balance sheets

at 31 March
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 42071 39929 42071 39929
Investments 1,6092 16092 1,6092 11,6092
58163 56021 58163 56021
Current assets
Stocks 17 106 n7z 06
Debtors 2157 1696 406 5 169 6
Investments — money market deposits 2420 - 400 -
Cash at bank and in hand {including short-term deposits) 3119 5015 3103 S01 5
781 3 6817 7685 6817
Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Short-term borrowings (786) (202 4) (786) (202 4)
Other creditors (4068 (3769) (4068 (3832
(485 4) (579 3) (485 4) (585 6)
Net current assets 2959 102 4 2831 961
Total assets less current liabilities 61122 57045 60994 56982
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Loans and other borrowings {4,3715) (3,8364) (4,3715) (3,8364)
Other creditors {(1123)  (i0zey {1123y (10286)
Provisions for habilties and charges (1198} (1392) {1196} (1392)
Defined benefit pension habilities 317) (35 1) {31 7 (35 1)
Defined benefit pension assets 158 - 158 -
Net assets including pension deficait 14929 15912 14801 15849
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 860 0 8600 8600 8600
Profit and loss reserve 632 9 7312 6201 7249
Total shareholders’ funds 14929 15912 14801 15849

Notes 1 to 27 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
The finanaal staterments on pages 32 to 60 were appz

on A behalf by
@l@ G

Peter Simpson
Chief Operating Officer

Scott Longhurst
Group Finance Director

by the board of directors on 15 June 2007 and were signed




Group cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March

Notes

(a)

(c)
(d)

{d)
(d)
{d}

{d}

Net cash inflow from operating actvities

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Interest recerved

Interest pard

Issue costs of new bank loans

Interest element of finance lease rental payments

Net cash inflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance

Taxation
Corporation tax paid
Payments to other AWG Plc group undertakings

Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Grants and contnbutions received

Disposal of tangible fixed assets

Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment

Equity dividends paid to shareholders

Net cash (outflow)/inflow before management of liquid resources and financing
Management of hiquid resources

{Increase)/decrease in short-term deposits and investments

Met cash {outflowyinflow from management of iquid resources
Financng

increase n loans

Repayment of amounts borrowed

Capital element of finance lease rental payments

Net cash inflow/{outflow) from finanaing

Increase/{decrease) in cash

Notes {a) to (d) form part of this consoldated cash flow statement

Notes 1 to 27 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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2007 2006
frm im
S585 528 8
2236 2825
217 2) {244 9)
{04 -
{59 (6 5)
01 311
(1e1) (20)
(24 3) (54)
(34 4) (7 4)
(416 Q) (264 0}
330 241
56 20
(377 4) {237 9)
(442 6)  (3057)
(295 8) 89
(237} 3112
(23 7) 3112
5500 3999
(1779 (726 6)
{23 9) (20 5)
3482 (347 2)
287 {27 1)
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Statutory accounts continued

{a)

{b

—

{c}

(d

—

Notes to the group cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March

Reconahation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

2007 2006
fm fm
Operating profit 404 8 3596
Depreciation (net of amortisation of deferred grants and contributions) 1895 1917
Profit on sale of fixed assets {(51) {(18)
Other non-cash movements - (6 2)
Net movement in provisions (4 8) 08
584 4 5441
Working capital
Increase 1n stocks an 37)
Increase in debtors (46 1} (21 0)
Increase In creditors 213 94
{25 9) (153)
Net cash inflow from operating actvities 5585 528 8
Analysis of net debt
1 Apnl Cash MNon cash 31 March
2006 flows mavements 2007
fm £rn £rn £m
Cash at bank and in hand 40 3 287 - 690
Deposits and 1nvestments 461 2 237 - 4849
Debt due within one year {202 4) 1487 (24 9) {78 6)
Debt due after one year (3,8364) (496 5} {386) (4,371 5)
(3.537 3) (295 4) {635) (3,8962)
Non-cash movements compnse indexation of index hnked loan stock, indexation of Retail Pnice Index (RPI) swaps,
transfers between categones of debt, repayments made by Anghan Water Services Financing Plc, amortisation of
discounts and expenses relating to debt issues and amorusation of "mark to market’ adjustments Included within
deposits and investments above are £242 9 million (2006 £461 2 rmillion) of short-term deposits maturing wathin
three months, which are included in the heading “cash at bank and in hand’ in the balance sheet
Management of liquid resources
This comprises movements in short-term deposits which have maturity dates of up to one year
Movement in net debt
2007 2006
£m fm
At beginmung of year (3.537 3) (3,499 4)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash 287 (27 1}
Increase/{decrease) in short-term bank deposits and investments 237 {311 2)
{ncrease in loans (5500 (3999)
Repayment of amounts borrowed 1779 726 6
Issue costs of new bank loans 04 -
Amortisation of discount and expenses relating to debt issues and ‘mark to market’ adjustments 07 (09)
Indexation of loan stock and RPI swaps {64 2) {45 9)
Capital element of finance lease rental payments 239 205
At end of year (3,896 2) (3,537 3)




a)

b)
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Accounting policies

These conschdated finanaial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, under the histoncal cost convention and
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and wath the Compantes Act 1985, except as
disdlosed m note 1(d) below as relating to grants and contnbutions

Basis of consolidation

The Anghan Water Services group (the group) financial statements comprise a consolidation of the financial statements
of Anglian Water Services Limited (the company) and its subsidiary, Anghan Water Services Finanang Plc, at 31 March
Intra-group sales and profit are eliminated fully on consolidation

In accordance with Section 230(4) of the Comparnues Act 1985, Anghan Water Services Lmited 1s exempt from the
requirement to present its own profit and loss account The amount of the profit for the finanaal year dealt wath
in the financial statements of Anghan Water Services Limited 1s disclosed 1n note 10 to the accounts

Turnover
Turnover represents the income recewable (excluding Value Added Tax) in the ordinary course of business for goods
and services prowided and, in respect of unbilled charges, includes an accrual for measured income

The measured income accrual 1s an esttmation of the amount of main water and wastewater charges unbilled at the year
end The accrual 1s estmated using a defined methodology based upon werghted average water consumption by tariff, which
Is calculated based upon histoncal billing information The calculation 1s sensitive to estmated consumption for domestic
customers (a fall of 1 cubic metre in average annual consumption will reduce turnover by approximately £2 4 milhon)

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets comprise

() Infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets compnse a network of systems consisting of mains and sewers, iImpounding and pumped raw water
storage reservoirs, sludge pipelines and sea outfalls Investrment expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increases
in capacity or enhancements of the network and on maintaming the operating capability of the network in accordance with
defined standards of service 1s treated as an addition and recorded at cost along with related capital grants and contnbutions

The depreciation charge for infrastructure assets 1s the estimated level of annual expenditure required to mamntain the
operating capability of the network, which 1s based on the company’s Asset Management Plan, which 1s independently
certified by the Reporter to Ofwat

{u) Other assets

Other assets compnse land and non-operational buildings, operational assets {compnsing sites used for water and
wastewater treatment, pumping or storage where not classified as infrastructure) and vehicles, mobile plant and equipment,
and are included at cost less accumulated depreciation Cost includes own work capitalised compnising the direct costs
of matenals, labour and applicable overheads Interest costs are not capitalised

Freehold land 1s not depreciated, nor are assets In the course of construction until commussicned Depreciation of other
assets 15 calculated at rates expected to write off cost less the estimated residual value of the relevant assets on a straight
line basis over their estimated economic lives, which are pnmarily as follows

Operational assets 30-80 years
Buildings 30-60 years
Fixed plant 12-40 years
Vehicles, mobile plant and equipment 3-10 years

Fixed assets are assessed for impairment in accordance with Finanaial Reporting Standard {FRS) 11 ‘tmpairment of fixed
assets and goodwill’, f an appropnate trigger anses
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Accounting pohicies continued

Grants and contributions
Grants and contributions for capital expenditure include government grants, mfrastructure charges, connection charges,
sewer adoption fees and other contrbutions from third parties

Grants and contnbutions to capital expenditure, other than those relating to infrastructure assets, are credited to
a deferral account within creditors and are released to the profit and loss account evenly over the expected useful Life
of the relevant asset in accordance with the prowisions of the Companies Act 1985

Grants and contributions to capital expenditure on infrastructure assets are deducted from the costs of these assets
This policy I1s not in accordance with Schedule 4 of the Compantes Act 1985, which requires grants and contnbutions
to be shown as deferred income, but has been adopted in order to show a true and fair view as, in the opinion of the
directors, while a provision 1s made for depreaation of infrastructure assets, these assets have no determinable finute
economic hfe and hence no basis exists on which to recogruse such contnbutions as deferred income The financial
effect of this departure is disclosed 1n note 11

Revenue grants and contributions are credited to the profit and loss account in the year to which they apply In particular,
commuted lump sums received in advance for water and sewer requisitions are credited to a deferral account within
creditors and are released to the profit and loss account in proportion to the year to which they apply

Leased assets

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements which transfer substantiafly all the risks and rewards of ownership
of an asset to the lessee {finance leases), the assets are treated as if they had been purchased and the corresponding capital
cost 1s shown as an obligation to the lessor Leasing payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and finance
costs, the capital element reducing the obligation to the lessor, and the finance costs being wntten off to the profit and
loss account over the pnmary penod of the lease The assets are depreciated over the shorter of ther estimated useful
lives and the lease penod All other leases are regarded as operating leases Rental costs ansing under operating leases
are expensed over the term of the lease

Investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less any provision for impairment

Stocks
Stocks are stated at cost less any provision necessary to recognise damage and obsolescence

Pension costs

Defined Benefit Schemes

For the defined benefit schemes and unfunded pension arrangements, pension scheme assets are measured at farr value
and habilities are measured on an actuanal basis using the projected unit method and are discounted at the current rate
of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the hiabldities The increase in the present
value of the liabilities of the company’s defined benefit pension scheme expected to anse from employee service in the '
penod 1s charged 1o operating profit The expected return on the scheme’s assets and the increase dunng the year in

the present value of the scheme's habilities ansing from the passage of time are included in other finance charges

Actuanal gains and losses are recogmised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses

Pension schemes’ surpluses, to the extent that they are considered recoverable, or deficits are recognised in full
and presented on the face of the balance sheet net of the related deferred tax

Defined Contribution Scheme
The cost of the defined contnbution scheme 1s charged to the profit and loss account in the year in respect
of which the contnbutions become payable
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Research and development
Research and development expenditure 15 charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which it 1s incurred

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foraign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transactions or, if hedged
forward, at the rate of exchange under the related forward currency contract Assets and habilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the finanaal year-end exchange rates or, if hedged forward,

at the rate of exchange under the related forward currency contract

Current and deferred taxation
Current taxation 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 15 prowided on timing differences, ansing from the different treatment for accounts and taxation
purposes of events and transactions recogrused in the financial statements of the current and previous years Deferred
taxation 1s calculated at the rates at which it 1s estimated that taxation will anse The deferred taxation balances are
discounted using the post tax yields to matunity that could be obtained at the balance sheet date on government bonds
with matunty dates similar to those of the deferred taxation assets and hiabilities For assets with a hife in excess of

30 years, an average rate based on bonds with a hfe up to 49 years has been used as no other quoted rates are available

Deferred taxation s not provided in respect of timing differences ansing from the sale or revaluation of fixed assets unless,
by the balance sheet date, a binding commitment to sell the asset has been entered into and it1s unhikely that any gain
will be rolled over

Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s regarded as more likely than not that there will be sutable
taxable profits against which the deferred tax asset can be recoverable in future periods

Calculation of deferred tax on infrastructure assets

infrastructure assets effectively have an unhmited Wife and a notional depreciation charge, the infrastructure renewal
charge (IRQ), 15 offset against the gross network asset value {see note 1(c)) For the purposes of estimating the deferred
tax habihty in relation to infrastructure assets, the useful life aver which the underlying differences reverse 1s estmated
by deflating the current cost based IRC to an approprate deemed histonc cost based depreciation charge

Bad debts
The bad debt provision is calculated based on applying expected recovery rates, based on actual histenical cash collection
performance, to an aged debt profile

Related party transactions
The group has 1aken advantage of the exemption not to disclose transactions with other members of the Anghan Water
Group Lirmited group under FRS 8 ‘Related party disclosures” as it 1s a wholly-owned subsidsary

Current asset investments

Cash deposits wath a matunty of greater than three meonths are classified as current asset investments within the balance
sheet Cash deposits with a matunty of greater than one day but less than three months are classified as cash at bank
and in hand within the balance sheet but are classified wathin liquid resources for the purposes of the cash flow statement




Statutory accounts continued

Annual Report and Accounts 2007

anglianwater co uk

o)

p)

@

3)

t)

u)

Notes to the financial statements continued

Accounting policies continued

Financial instruments

Dervative instruments are used for hedging purposes in kne with the group’s risk management policy and no trading
in financtal instruments 1s undertaken Loans and other borrowings are recorded using the contracted rates imphat
in the financial instruments used to hedge the group’s expasure to fluctuations in currency rates Simdarly, interest

15 charged to the profit and loss account based on the contracted interest rates

Interest rate swaps are used to hedge the group’s exposure to movements in interest rates The interest payable
or receivable on such swaps is accrued in the sarme way as interest ansing on deposits or borrowings Interest rate
swaps are not revalued to fair value pnor to matunty

Gains and losses on derwative instruments used for hedging are recognised on matunty of the underlying transactions
Gains and losses arising on hedging instruments which are cancelled due to the termination of the underlying exposure
are taken to the profit and loss account immediately

Costs that are incurred directly in connection with the 1ssue of a capital instrument are capitahsed at a constant rate
over the hfe of the underlying instrument

The group has not adopted FRS 26 ‘Finanaal instruments recognition and measurement’ and therefore the disclosure
requirements of paragraphs 51 to 95 of FRS 25 ‘Financial instruments disclosure and presentation’ are not applicable
The disclosure requirements of FRS 13 ‘Dervatives and other financial instruments disclosure’ have been applied

Capitalisation of finance costs
Costs that are incurred directly in connection with the issue of a capital instrument are capitalised and amortised
at a constant rate over the life of the underlying instrument

Prowisions
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obhgation for a past event, for which 1t 1s probable that
a transfer of economic benefits will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the oblgation

Prowisions of a long-term nature are discounted to reflect the tme value of money in the estmated period over which
the provision will be utilised A nsk-free rate of discount has been used

Redundancy costs

Redundancy costs are charged to the profit and loss account 1n the penod in which the group both becomes irrevocably
committed to incurnng the costs and has raised a valid expectation with, and announced the main features of the
programme to, affected employees or their representatives

Onerous lease costs
Proviston I1s made for the expected future costs of property and other leases to the extent that these costs are not
expected to be of future benefit to the bustness, net of any recoveries from sub leases

Share based remuneration

For grants made under the AWG Ple group's share based remuneration scheme, amounts that reflect the far value

of options awarded as at the time of grant are charged to the profit and loss account The valuation of options utilises
a binomial option pricing model which forms the basis for the charge from AWG Plc for the group's element of the
charge under these schemes During the year all group share based schemes ended as a consequence of the change
i ownership and delisting of AWG Plc

Dividends

Divrdends are recognised as a hability in the period in which they are approved or commuitted Intenm divdends
are recognised in the penad in which they are paid or when the company has a constructive or legal commitment
to pay the dwidend
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2 Segmental analysis
The directors belteve that the whole of the group’s actmities constitute a single class of business

The group’s turnover is wholly generated from within the United Kingdom

3 Operating costs

2007 2006
restated’
fm fm
Operating costs before depreciation
Raw materials and consumables 112 257
Other operating costs 2344 2134
Staff costs (see note 9) 1389 1211
Own work capitalised (55 7) @50)
Contribution to Anglian Water Trust Fund 10 10
Profit on sale of fixed assets (51) (8
Total operating costs before depreciation 3247 3144
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 1989 1997
Amortisation of deferred grants and contrnibutions {9 4) (8 0
Depreciation net of amortisabion of deferred grants and contnbutions 1895 1917
Total operating costs 5142 506 1

The profit on sale of fixed assets relates to vanous sales of surplus land and assets

' The prior year comparative for staff costs has been restated by £9 2 million to include benefits in kind, cash for car payments and other staff costs
which were previously categonsed within other perating costs (see note 9}

4 OQperating profit

2007 2006
fm fm
Operating profit1s stated after charging
Audit services
— {ees payable to the company auditors for the audit of the
parent company and the consohdated accounts 02 01
Non audit services
— other services pursuant to regulatory requirements 02 g1
- other services 01 01
Total fees paid to the auditors 05 03
Hire of plant and machinery 10 11
Other operating lease rentals payable 79
Research and development expenditure 06 11

The fees paid to auditors for other non audit services largely relate to the review of the offenng arcular under IFRS
and the guaranteed standards scheme reporting to Ofwat

5 Net interest payable

2007 2006

£fm fm

Other loans including financaing expenses 2127 2442
{ndexation 643 459
Finance leases 57 69
Interest recevable from Anghan Water Senvices Holdings Limited (193 1) (193 1}
QOther interest recevable (30 3) (41 5)

Net interest payable and simular items 593 624
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Other finance {income)/charges

2007 2006
Em fm
Unwinding of discount on prowisions (see note 18} 10 09
Defined benefit pension scheme (see note 20{c}) 84 {0 8)
Other finance (income)/charge (74) 01
Taxation
2007 2006
£m fm
Analysis of tax charge in the year
Current tax
UK corporation tax . 230 226
Adjustments in respect of previous penods 77 -
Total current tax charge 307 226
Deferred tax
Charge for timing differences ansing in year 211 115
Impact of discounting on deferred tax hability (22 2) {9 6)
Impact of decrease in discount rates (12 2} 209
Discounted effect of movements in Advance Corporation Tax (ACT) 41 50
Reversal of prior year asset on share scheme 38 -
Adjustments in respect of previous periods (7 5} 2
Total deferred tax (credit)/charge {12 9) 266
Total tax charge on profit on ordinary activities 17 8 492

The post-tax yield to matunty on UK Government bonds is used to discount the gross deferred tax labiity of the group
Movements In the discount rates gave nise to a credit of £12 2 milion (2006 charge of £20 9 milhon} 1n the year If all
UK giit rates moved by 0 25 per cent a change in the tax charge of between £10 0 million to £15 0 million would occur

The current tax charge includes a charge of £6 7 million (2006 £12 0 mithon) from another AWG Plc group undertaking

for the utibsation of ACT

It has been agreed that the group will not pay for tax losses surrendered to 1t by Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited

Factors affecting tax charge for the period

The tax assessed for the year 15 lower than the standard rate of corporation tax In the UK (30 per cent} The differences are

explained below

2007 2006
Em fm
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 3529 2971
Profit on ordinary actmties at the standard UK rate of corporation tax (30 per cent} 1059 891
Effects of
Items not deductible for tax purposes 01 {05)
Group rehef utihsed (57 9) (55 2)
Tax relief on employee exercise of share options @a2) -
Accounting for depreciation not ehigible for tax purposes 07 07
Capital allowances for the year in excess of depreciation {19 6) (119
Short-term tirming differences (20 04
Adjustment to tax charge n respect of previous penods 77 -
Current tax charge for the year 307 226
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Diidends

2007 2006
fm im
Previous year final dividend 350 300
Current year interim dmdend - 350
Specizl distribution 2150 -
Divdend paid by the company and retained withun the Anglian Water Services Financing group 1926 2407

Dwdend commutted to be pard by the company and retained
within the Anghan Water Services Finanaing group 05 ~
4431 3057

A dividend of £192 6 midlion (2006 £240 7 millhion} was paid to Anghan Water Services Holdings Limited, a parent
undertaking, tn order for it to senace the interest payable to the company on the inter-company lean of £1,609 1 millon
(see note 12) The remaining £0 5 milhon which has been committed to be paid will be settled in June 2007

The speaia! distnbution of £215 0 million was paid on 7 March 2007 as a finanaal restructunng dividend to increase
geanng in the company

The directors have proposed a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2007 of 4 07 pence per share, which s a total
of £35 0 milllon This dwvidend has not been accounted for within the current year financial statements as 1t has been
approved and paid subsequent to the year-end

Employee information and directors’ emoluments
Employee information

2007 2006
restated’
fm fm
Staff costs
Wages and salanes 1067 953
Social secunty costs 26 80
Pension costs — defined contribution (see note 20) 16 08
Pension costs — defined benefil (see note 20) 145 161
Share scheme costs?
~ Regular cost 31 09
— Employee share scheme early vesting breakage costs 34 -
1389 1211

! The pnor year comparative has been restated 10 include benefits an kind cash for car payments and other staft costs amounting to £9 2 million
which were prewously categonsed within other operating costs

2The company pariicipated in a number of share incentive schemas that were operated by the AWG Group on behalf of 115 employees up to
23 Novemnber 2006 when they vested early as a result of the takeover of AWG Plc by Osprey Acquisiions Limited The regular cost of the schemes
was calculated wath reference to the anticipated number and value of options that would have vested at the end of the vesting penied and this
amount was charged 10 the company by AWG Plc with reference to the number of options that the employees of the company were enttled to
As a result of the acquission of AWG Ple by Osprey Acquisiions Limited  all share incentive schemes vested early, and an early vesting breakage
charge of £3 4 million was made to the company by AWG Plc far the amount that otherwise would have been recogrised for services recewved
over the remainder of the vesting penicd

Any employer s national insurance that 1s chargeable on the gain between the option price and the actual share price at the penod end has also
been charged to the profit and loss account

The regular cost for employee share schemes has increased significantly compared to the pnor year and approxamately 60 per cent of the increase
relates to the increase in the share price of AWG Pic following the imitial offer made by Osprey Acquisitions bimsted 10 purchase the entire share
capital of AWG Plc on 14 September 2006

Staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2007 includes £55 7 million {2006 £45 0 million) of costs that have been
capitalised as ‘own work capitahsed’ and redundancy costs of £1 3 million {£0 6 milhion of wages and salaries and
£0 7 million of pension costs) wholly relating to a reorganisation undertaken by the business (2006 £1 3 million
of which £0 5 milhon represented wages and salanes and £0 8 million represented pension costs}
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Employee information and directors’ emoluments continued
Employee information continued

2007 2006
Average number of full-tirne equivalent persons employed (including Executive Directors)
Water Services 654 631
Wastewater Services 1,187 1,133
Customer Services 637 495
Asset Management and Other 1,133 1,063

3,611 3,322

Directors’ emoluments

2007 2006

£000 £000

Aggregate emoluments 1,567 1,373
Aggregate compensation for loss of office 780 -
Total emoluments 2,347 1,373
Company contabutions to money purchase pension schemes 203 180

Aggregate emoluments of the directors compnise salanes, taxable benefits and amounts payable under annual bonus
schemes Retirement benefits are accruing to two directors (2006 two directors) under a defined beneiit scheme
Retirement benefits are accruing to three directors (2006 three directors) under a defined contribution scheme The
aggregate amount of compensation for loss of office includes a sum of £550,000 1n respect of pension arrangements

Share options and long-term incentive schemes

During the year five directors (2006 nil directors) including the highest paid director, exeraised share options

and six directors (2006 nul directors) including the highest paid directos, receved shares in AWG Ple under long-term
incentive schemes

Highest paid director

2007 2006
000 £000
Aggregate highest paid director’s emoluments 497 408

The company’s contribution in respect of the ighest pard director into defined contnbution pension schemes was
£136,100 (2006 £112,500)

Profit for the financial year
The group profit for the finanaal year includes a profit of £328 6 milhon (2006 £246 9 mullion), which has been dealt
with in the finanaial statements of the parent undertaking
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11 Tangible fixed assets
Group and company

Infra- Vehicles, Assets
Land and structure  Operational plant and under
buldings assets assets  equipment construction Total
fm £m £m fm Em £m
Cost
At 1 Apnil 2006 290 24310 30260 6189 2401 63450
Additigns - -~ - - 4260 4260
Transfers on commissioning 17 1259 1315 1001 (359 2} -
Disposals {0 1) {03) {0 1) 0 5) - {1 0)
At 31 March 2007 306 25566 3,1574 7185 3069 67700
Grants and contributions
At 1 April 2006 - (188 9} - - (17) (1906)
Additions - {11 8} - - {0 6) {12 4)
At 31 March 2007 - (200 7) - - {23) (2030)
Depreciation
At 1 April 2006 (22y (5351} (1,141 3} (482 9) - {2,161 5)
Charge for the year {0 4) (5250 (1024) {43 6) - (198 9)
Disposals - - - Q5 - 05
At 31 March 2007 {2 6) (587 6) (1,2437) (526 Q) - {2,359 9)
Net book amount
At 31 March 2007 280 1,7683 19137 1925 3046 4,207 1
At 31 March 2006 268 11,7070 18847 136 0 2384 39929
Tangible fixed assets at 31 March 2007 include land of £18 4 mullron (2006 £17 7 million) which 15 not subject
to depreciation The group's interests in land and buildings are almost entirely freehold
Assets held under finance leases and capitalised in vehicles, plant and equipment
2007 2006
£m fm

Cost 2510 2510
Aggregate depreciation (1447) (136 8)
Net book amount 106 3 114 2

Capital commitments
The group has a substantial long-term investrnent programme which includes expenditure to meet regulatory
requirements, shortfalls in performance and condiion and tc provide for new demand and growth The commitments
shown below reflect the value outstanding of orders placed at 31 March 2007
2007 2006
fm im

Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements 139 4 1136




46

Annual Report and Accounts 2007

anglanwater co uk

Statutory accounts continued

12

13

14

15

Notes to the financial statements continued

Fixed asset iInvestments

Other investments — shares at cost
Loan to Anghan Water Services Holdings Limited

Group and company

2007 2006
fm fm

01 01
1,609 1 1,609 1
1,609 2 1,609 2

The loan of £1,609 1 million, made by the company to Anghan Water Services Holdings Limited, is repayable on the later
of 30 July 2038 and another date being the next interest payment date following a date which 1s two years and one day
after the final matunty date of the longest dated bond ssued from time to trme by Anghan Water Senices Finanaing Pic
Interest on the loan 1s calculated at 12 per cent per annum Anghan Water Services Financing Plc, whose principal actmaty
15 that of a financing company, 1s the sole subsidiary of the group It s 100 per cent owned, and s registered,

incorporated and operating in the UK at 31 March 2007

On 30 March 2007, the company acquired the trade of Anghan Water Direct Limited for a consideration of £1 from
another AWG Plc group company This has no impact on the company’s trading results for the year

Stocks

Group and company

2007 2006
fm £m
Raw matenals and consumables 117 10 6
The current replacement value of stocks does not matenially exceed the historical costs stated above
Debtors
Group Campany
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m fm £m fm
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 107 2 1191 107 2 1191
Amounts owed by other AWG Plc group undertaking 05 - 1923 -
Other debtors 177 182 167 182
Prepayments and accrued income 90 3 323 903 323
2157 169 6 406 5 169 6
Prepayments and accrued income as at 31 March 2007 includes water and wastewater income not yet billed
of £83 6 million (2006 £26 1 milion}
Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
f£m fm fm im
Current portion of long-term loans 514 1785 514 178 5
Obhgations under finance leases 272 239 27 2 239
Short-term borrowings (see note 16) 786 202 4 786 202 4
Trade creditors 1377 107 5 1377 107 5
Amounts owed to other AWG Plc group undertakings 72 i97 935 1130
Receipts in advance 114 3 1044 1143 104 4
Corporation tax 379 416 379 416
Other taxation and socal security 36 34 36 34
Deferred grants and contnibutions 93 77 93 77
Accruals 96 8 926 105 56
Qther creditors 4068 376 9 406 8 3832
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Receipts in advance includes £90 8 milhon (2006 £81 7 milhon) relating to amounts receved from customers for water

and wastewater charges in respect of the following year

The current portion of long-term loans for the company relates to amounts owed to Anghan Water Services Finanaing Plc

Loans, other borrowings and financial instruments

Loans and other barrowings

£150 mullion 8 25% fixed rate 2006 {(d), (g)

£150 mulhon ‘mark to market’ adjustment {g)

£100 mulhion 5 5% tndex knked 2008 {(¢), (d), (g}

£100 million 12 375% fixed rate 2014 {d), (g)

£250 milion 5 837% fixed rate 2022 {(d), (g}

£200 million 6 875% fixed rate 2023 {d), {g)

£200 million 6 625% fixed rate 2029 (d), (g)

£246 million 6 293% fixed rate 2030 (d), {g}

£275 million 7 882% fixed rate 2012/2037 (d}, (@), (h}
£250 million 5 25% fixed rate 2015 {d), {g)

£150 milion 5 5% fixed rate 2017/2040 {d), (g), (h}
£150 million 4 125% index hinked 2020 (c), (d), (g)

£75 rlon 3 666% index inked 2024 {c), (d), (g)

£200 million 3 07% index linked 2032 {(c), (d), (g)

£60 milhion 3 07% index linked 2032 (c), (d}, (Q)

Finance leases (d)

Other fixed rate loans

£150 milhon index linked swap 2024 (f)

£175 milhon index linked swap 2030 (f)

£258 milhon index linked swap 2013 {f)

€350 milhon 5 375% fixed rate 2009 (a}, (d), (g

€650 million 4 625% fixed rate 2013 (a), (d), (g)

Us$4 million 7 21% private placements 2006 (a), (g}
U5%$35 million & 62% private placements 2006 (a), (d), (g}
US$100 midlion 7 01% private placements 2008 (a), (d}, {9}
Us$25 milion 7 07% private placements 2009 (a), {9)
US$25 million ‘mark to market’ adjustment

US$23 million 7 13% private placements 2009 (a), {d), (g}
US$195 midlion 7 23% private placements 2011 (a), (d), (g)
£402 milhon 2 40% index inked 2035 (¢), (d), (g}

£50 million 1 7% index knked 2046 (c), {d), (g)

£50 million 1 7% index hnked 2046 (¢}, (d}, (g}

£40 milhon 1 7146% indexation bond 2056 (¢}, (d), (g)
£50 milion 1 6777% indexation bond 2056 (¢}, (d), (g)
£60 milhon 1 7903% indexatton bond 2049 (¢}, {d), (g)
£60 milbon index linked swap 2008 (f)

£90 mulion index nked swap 2008 (f)

£100 million 1 3784% indexation bond 2057 (c), (d), (g}
£50 milhon 1 3825% indexation bond 2056 (c), {d), (g}
£50 million RBS (lass B authonised loan facility {g)

£100 million Class A wrapped floating rate bonds (g)
£100 million index linked swap 2057 {f)

Total loans and other borrowings

Less amounts included in creditors falling due wathin one year

toans and other borrowings due after more than one year

LIBOR 15 the London Inter Bank Qffer Rate

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m fm

- 1500 - 1500

- 20 - 20
168 2 1627 168 2 i627
1000 1000 1000 1000
2469 2467 2469 246 7
1999 1999 1999 1999
1999 1999 199 9 1999
2437 2436 2437 2436
2731 2727 2731 2727
2495 2494 2495 249 4
1485 148 3 148 5 148 3
1802 1745 1802 174 5
852 825 852 825
2258 2184 2258 2184
677 656 67 7 656
925 1164 925 1164
- 01 - 01
PaN:] 161 218 161
254 187 254 187
275 188 275 188
2292 2292 2292 2292
4527 452 5 4527 452 5
- 03 - 03

- 249 - 249
709 709 709 709
80 106 80 106
03 04 03 04
163 163 163 163
138 2 1381 1382 1381
424 9 409 3 4249 409 3
510 - 510 -
512 - 512 -
412 - 412 -
515 - 515 -
617 - 617 -
an - an -
27 - 27) -
1010 - 1010 -
505 - 505 -
500 - 500 -
1000 - 1000 -
01 - 01 -
44501 40388 44501 40388
{78 6) {202 4) (78 6) (202 4)
43715 38364 43715 38364
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Loans, other borrowings and financial instruments continued

The group has entered into swap agreements which eliminate the risk of currency fluctuations in relation to the US dollar
and Euro loans The adjustment to the US dollar loans 1s £65 9 million (2006 £48 7 million) and the adjustment to the
Euro loans s £3 7 mullon (2006 £{14 8) millien)

The group has entered into swap agreements that convert its debt into erther floating rate, fixed rate or index linked debt
in aceordance with the group's hedging policy (see page 40)

The value of the capital and interest elements of the index linked loans are inked to maverents in the Retail Price Index
The total increase in the capital value of index hnked foans dunng the year of £47 S million (2006 £28 4 millkon) has been
taken to the profit and loss account as part of interest payable

These loans are shown net of i1ssue costs The Issue costs are amortised at a constant rate based on the carrying amount
of debt over the hife of the underlying instruments

*Mark to market” adjustments relate to back-to-back debt reassigned from AWG Group Limited to Anglian Water Services
Finanaing Plcin July 2002 at fair value rather than book value The difference between the book value and farr value

15 being amortised at a constant rate based on the carrying amount of debt over the remainder of its hife

The group has entered into six index linked interest rate swap agreements The values of the notional capital on these
swaps are linked to movements in the Retall Price Index {RPI) The increase in the notional capital value 1s payable at the
final matunty date of the swaps The increase for the current year of £16 8 mullion (2006 £17 5 miflion) has been taken
to the profit and loss account as part of interest payable

These loans are "back-to-back’ inter-group loans from Anglian Water Services Financing Plc to the company Under the
company/Anghan Water Services Financing Plc loan agreement, Anglian Water Services Financing Ple onlends an equal
amount to the sterling equivalent of each bond to the company on identical terms Therefore each indmdual "back-to-back’
inter-group loan has been separately disclosed Anghan Water Services Finanang Ple charges the company an annual
management fee 1n respect of entenng nto the company/Anghan Water Services Financing Pic loan agreement

Legal matunty of these instruments 1s the second of the years quoted Coupon 'step-up’ 15 1n the first of the years quoted
Under a security agreement dated 30 July 2002 between Anghan Water Services Financing Plc, the company, Anghan
Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited, Anghan Water Services Holdings Uimrted and Deutsche Trustee Company
bimited {as Agent and Trustee for itself and each of the Finance Parties to the Global Secured Medium Term Note
Programme) a fixed and floating charge was created over the assets of the company to the extent permissible under

the Water Industry Act 1991 In addition there 1s a fixed charge over the issued share capital of Anglian Water Services
Finanang Plc, the company and Anglian Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited At 31 March 2007 this charge
apples to £4,450 1 milllon (2006 £4,038 8 milhon) of the debt listed above

For the company the current and long-term borrowings can be analysed as follows

2007 2006

Creditors Creditors Creditors Creditors

<1 year >1 year <1 year > lyear

fm Em £m £m

Amounts owed to group undertakings (‘back-to-back’ inter-group loans) 528 43229 1800 37614

Debt 1ssue costs {14) (167} {15) (17 6)
Obligations under finance leases 272 653 239 925
Other loans - - 01

786 4315 2024 38364

Matunty analysis of finanaial habiities
Group and company

2007 2006

fm fm

Less than one year 814 2056
Between one and two years 2414 32
Between two and five years 3958 493 7
After five years 3,7539 3,3343

44725 4,064 8

Included above are amounts due under finance leases of £27 2 million {2006 £23 9 milhon} payable within one year,
£3 0 milkon (2006 £27 2 million} payable between one and two years, £7 4 million (2006 £7 6 mullion) payable
between two and five years and £54 8 million (2006 £57 7 million} payable after five years The above maturity profile
15 determined by reference to the fixed dates on which the hability falls due
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In addrion to loans and finance leases the above analysis includes other financial labihues {including overdrafts, long-term
creditors, accruals and prowisions) totalhng £22 4 milhon (2006 £26 0 million), of which £2 8 millien falls due in less than
one year (2006 £3 2 million) This analysis s net of 1ssue costs totalling £18 1 million (2006 £19 1 million)

Borrowing facihities

Group
2007 2006
fm fm

The group has the following unused committed borrowing facilities
Expring wathin one year 3280 3330
Exprring between one and two years - -
Expiring between two and five years 2250 2250
Expinng 1in more than five years - -
5530 5580

Control of treasury

The Treasury team, which reports directly to the group’s Finance Director, substantially manages the group finanaing,
mncluding debt, interest costs and foreign exchange Treasury policy continues to be focused on the efficient and effecuve
management of cash and finanaal resources wathin the group The treasury function wall actively endeavour to

Ensure that lenders covenants are met

Secure funds through a balanced approach te financial markets and matunties
Manage interest rates to minimise finanaial exposures and minimise interest costs
Invest temporary surplus cash to best advantage at mimimal financial risk
Maintain an excellent reputation with providers of finance and rating agenaes
=> Promote management techmiques and systems

=> Enhance control of financial resources

R

Management of financial nisk

Financial nsks faced by the group include funding, interest rate, contractual and currency risks The board regularly
reviews these risks and has approved wntten policies covenng treasury strategy and the use of financial mstruments
to manage nsks The last review was 1n March 2007 and treasury matters are reported to the board each month

A Treasury Advisory Group (TAG), comprising the group Finance Director, the group Treasurer, together with the same
positton holders and a Nan-Executive Director of the ultimate shareholder Anghan Water Group Limited, meets monthly
with the specific rermit of reviewing treasury matters

The group aims to meet its funding requirements pnmanly through public bond markets, private placements, bank loans
and finance leases Surplus cash Is invested 1n short-term bank deposits, commeraial paper and AAA rated money funds

The group, via its financing subsidiary AWSF, also enters into denvative transactions (principally currency and interest
rate swaps)} to manage the interest rate and currency nsks ansing from the treasury policy

o ensure continued effectiveness and relevance, the board carres out a formal annual review of the treasury organisation
and reporting

Borrowing covenants

With the exception of asset-based funding, all the group's borrowings are raised by Anglian Water Services Financing Plc
and guaranteed by the Anglhan Water Services Financing group (see Drrectors’ report on page 28} The treasury function
monitors compliance against all finanaal obligations and it 15 the group's policy to manage the balance sheet so as to
ensure operation within covenant restnctions

Foreign currency

The group has currency exposures resulting from debt raised in currencies other than sterling and very small purchases
in foreign currencies  The group uses a range of instruments to hedge such exposures All hedges are undertaken for
commercial reasons with the objective of minimising the impact of exchange rate fluctuations on net assets and profits

Financial instruments disclosures
Short-term debtors and creditors have been excluded from this note except for the comments on currency exposures
to the financial statements
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Loans, other borrowings and financial instruments continued

Currency exposures

The group has no matenal unhedged monetary assets and habilities denomnated in a currency ditferent from the local
currency of the company

Fair value of financial assets and financal hiabilities

2007 2006
Book Fair Book Fair
value value’ value value*
£ Em £m fm

The fair value of the group’s financal instruments at 31 March was
Cash at bank and 1n hand 3119 3119 5015 5015
Current asset investments 2420 2420 - -
Short-term borrowings (78 1) (79 1) {197 4) {201 2)
Long-term borrowings (4,2320) (4,587 0) (3,7537) {4,269 3)
Interest rate swaps {69 6) (83 3) (3400 (395)
Index linked swaps {704) (131 3) (537) (1393)
(3,896 2) (4,326 8) (3,537 3) {4,147 8)
Fixed asset investments 1,6092 19308 16092 19308
Provisions excluding deferred tax and pension obligations (22 4) (22 4) (26 0) (26 0)

(23094) (24184} (1,954 1) (2.2430)

! The fair value of the group's financial instruments includes accrued interest on borrowings and swaps of £86 0 million {2006 £86 8 rrullion)
The book value excludes accrued interest which 1s shown separately in the balance sheet within creditors amounts falling ¢ue wathin one year

The fair value of loans and other barrowtngs represents the market value of publicly traded debt instruments or,

if int respect of private debt, the cost which the group would incur if it elected to repay these borrowings before their
matunty dates, calculated by discounting future cash flows at prevailing rates In the fair value table above, the book
values assigned to dervative instruments are separately analysed from the book values of the underlying loans

In accardance with the group’s accounting policy, long-term borrowings are recorded using the contracted rates imphat
in the finanaial instruments used to hedge the group’s exposure to fluctuations in currency and interest rates

Interest 1s charged to the profit and loss account based on the contracted interest rates To determine the fair value

of interest rate swaps for inclusion in the above table, a calculation was made of the net gain or loss which would have
ansen if these contracts had been terminated on 31 March 2007 The value at that date was determined by market interest
rates, which fluctuate over ttme The fair value of the group’s fixed asset investments is calculated by discounting cash
flows at prevailing rates reflecting the refative nisks involved

Denvative transactions and placements of cash on deposit expose the group to credit risk against the counterparties
concerned Anghan Water has credit protection measures in place within agreements which provide protection in the
event of counterparty rating downgrade or default The group only enters into denvative transactions and places cash
deposits with banks of high credit standing (as measured by reputable rating agenaes) and also seeks to diversify
exposure such that concentration wath indmidual banks 1s avoided

The fair value of the group’s financial assets, provisions and other finanaial habiliies has been esimated as not matenafly
dhfferent from the book value

2007 2006
Gains Losses Net Gains Losses Net
fm f£m fm fm £m £m

Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges
Unrecogmsed at 1 Apnl 155 {(1603) (144 8) 188 (104 1) (85 3)

Reversal of items unrecognised at

1 April (56) 116 60 43 62 i9
Recognised during the year (34) 17 2 i38 (52) 81 29
Ansing dunng the year 77 (27 7) {20 Q) 62 {70 5) (64 3)
Unrecognised at 31 March 14 2 {159 2) {145 0) 155 {160 3) (144 8)
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Gans and losses on instruments used for hedging are not recognised until the exposure that 1s being hedged s itself
recogrised The total net unrecogmised loss of £145 0 million {2006 net loss £144 8 milhon) pnncipally represents the
opportunity cost of protecting the group Interest charge against movements in interest rates at a time when interest rates

were higher than at 31 March 2007

Of the unrecognised gains and losses at 31 March 2007, a net gain of £5 2 million {2006 net loss of £0 S milhon} 15
expected to be included in the profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the balance in future years

All the gains and losses on the hedging instruments are expected to be matched by losses and gains on the hedge of
transactions or positions Foreign currency borrowings are swapped into sterhing and translated at the contracted rates
Consequently, the carrying value of the relevant borrowing effectively includes the gain or loss on the hedging instrument

Currency and interest rate analysis of net financial assets/(liabilities) at 31 March 2007

Total borrowings (all sterling)
Cash, deposits and current asset
investments {al! sterling}

Net debt

Fixed asset investments
Provisions

Net financial habilities

Currency and interest rate analysis of net financial assets/{habilitres) at 31 March 2006

Total borrowings (all sterling)
Cash, deposits and current asset
wnvestments {all sterling)

Net debt

Fixed asset investments
Provisions *

Net financial habilities

Fuwed rate Fixed rate

weighted weighted

Index Floating Fixed Interest avarage average

Total . linked rate rate free interest years 10

fm fm fm fm Em rate matunty

(4,450 1) (2,162 0) (3950) (1,893 1) - 6 9% 152
5539 - 553 9 - -
(3,896 2) (2,162 0) 1589 (1,833 1) -
1,609 2 - - 11,6091 o1
(22 4) - - - (22 4)
(2,309 4) (2.1620) 158 9 {284 0) (22 3)

Fixed rate Fixed rate

weighted weighted

Index Floating Foed Interest average average

Total linked rate rate free Interest years to

fm £m fm £m fm rate matunty

(4,0388) (1,748 7) (344 0) (1,946 1) - 6 7% 123
5015 - 5015 - -
(3.5373) (1,7487) 1575 (1,946 1) -
1,609 2 - - 16091 o1
(26 0) — — - {26 Oy
(1,954 1) (1,7487) 1575 {337 0) (25 9)

Floating rate cash and investments earn interest based on the London Inter Bank Bid rate {LIBID) for the relevant currency
Floating rate borrowings incur interest based on LIBOR

17 Other creditors fallings due after more than one year

Deferred grants and contnbutions

Group and company

2007 2006
fm £m
1123 1026
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Prowisions for labilities and charges
Group and company

Coupon

Onerous enhance- Deferred

lease ment tax
abhgation provision prowision Total
£m £m £m Em
AL 1 Apnl 2006 40 220 1132 1392
Credit for the year (0 4} - (16 0) {16 4)
Unwinding of discount (note 6) - 10 - 10
Utdised 1n the year {0 3) (39 - 42
At 31 March 2007 33 191 97 2 1196

The onerous lease provision relates to office space vacated by the group as part of the cost cutting programme to achieve
efficiency targets set by Ofwat The provision is discounted and 15 expected to be utilised over the next 15 years

The coupon enhancement provision of £19 1 miflion relates to coupon enhancement and other related costs incurred
on the transfer of debt from AWG Group Limited to Anglian Water Services Finanaing Ple at the end of the refinancing
exercise In 2002 The provision relates to several instruments with varying matunty dates It s expected to be utifised
In varying amounts over the next 22 years and has been discounted

The net deferred tax credit to the profit and loss account compnses the £16 0 million credit above offset by a £3 1 rmilhion
charge from the defined benefit pension habity

The deferred tax proviston and the effect of discounting 1s analysed in note 19

Deferred tax

The total tax charge or credit in the current year includes prowvisions for discounted deferred taxation Consequently,
changes in the medium-term and long-term interest rates used to discount deferred taxation assets and habilities can
affect the amount of deferred taxation charged or credited in the profit and loss account

The deferred tax liability 1s stated net of Advance Corporation Tax (ACT) recoverable ' changes in the tax legislation were
introduced which restricted the ability of companies to use ACT, this asset may no longer be recoverable and in this event,
an additional tax charge would anise in the profit and loss account of £58 6 million

Group and company

2007 2006
f£m fm
Accelerated capital allowances 7620 754 2
Short-term timing differences (16 1) (19 4)
Surplus ACT asset {1303) {1370
Undiscounted prowision for deferred tax 6156 597 8
Discount {(5184) {484 6)
Discounted provision for deferred tax 97 2 1132
Deferred tax asset on pension hability {see note 20(b}) (6 8) {150)
Total deferred tax included in the balance sheet 90 4 98 2
As at 1 Apnl 2006 98 2
Deferred tax credited to the profit and loss account (see note 7(a)) {12 9)
Deferred tax charged to the statement of total recognised gains and tosses 51
At 31 March 2007 S0 4
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20 Pension commitments

{a

—

Penston arrangements for the majonty of the group’s employees are of the funded defined benefit type through the
AWG Pension Scheme (AWGPS) The group’s actuary 1s Aon Consulting The defined benefit arrangements are closed to
new employees, who are eligible instead for entry to AWG’s defined contnbution schemes For the AWGPS, as a closed
scheme, under the projected unit method, the current service cost wall increase as the members approach retirement
The adrmnistration and investment of the pension funds are maintained separately from the finances of the group

The group also manages an unfunded pension arrangement which has been valued by independent actuanies to take
account of the requirements of FRS 17 as at 31 March 2007 The provision for unfunded pension obligations relates

to the cost of enhancements to the pension entitfernents of former employees, over and above their entittements in the
group’s pension schemes The majonity of these employees ceased their employment following redundancy programmes
principally between seven and 16 years ago These pension enhancements are payable until the death of the employees
(or therr dependents}, and payments are expected to be made over approximately 27 years

fn addition, the group operates a defined benefit scheme for the employees of the former Hartlepool Water Limited
acquired on 1 Apnil 2000 and a defined contribution scheme which commenced on 1 Apnil 2002

Contnbutions to the defined contnbution pension scheme in the year were £1 6 million (2006 £0 8 mulhion)

Financial assumptions

The valuation used has been based on the informal valuation for AWGPS carnied out as at 1 Apni 2006 (summarised
below), updated by independent actuaries to take account of the requirements of FRS 17 1n order to assess the labilities
of the scheme at 31 March 2007 The group contnbuted 14 9 per cent of pensionable pay in the year and for the year
ending 31 March 2008 the expected contnbution rate 1s 15 3 per cent In addition, the group paid £3 1 mullion in defiait
reduction payments in the year A further £10 7 million relating to the year ending 3t March 2007 was paid on 5 Apnl 2007

The habiliies of the schemes have been valued using the projected unit method and using the following assumptions

2007 2006 2005

% pa % pa % pa
Discount rate 53 49 54
Inflation rate 31 28 28
Increase to deferred benefits durning deferment 31 28 28
Increases to inflation related pensions in payment ER 28 28
General salary increases 31! 28 38
Longevity at age 65 for current pensioners (years)
Mien 187 186 185
Women 216 215 214
Longevity at age 65 for future pensioners (years)
Men 205 199 193
Women 23 4 28 222

! The salary increase assumptien has been restated in 2007 and 2006 to RP! for the remamder of the current AMP (see glossary of terms on page 88)
which ends in 2009/10
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20 Pension commitments conbinued

(b) Market value of assets and expected rates of returns
The long-term expected rate of return and the assets in the scheme relating to the company at 31 March 2007 are
Unfunded
AWGPS penstons  Hartlepoo! Total

Expected Farr value Fair value Farr value Fair value
rateof  of scheme  ofscherne  of scherme  of scheme

return assets assets assets assets

S%hpa im £m im {m

Equities 77 3834 n/a 22 3856
Corporate bonds 51 1853 n/a - 185 3
Gilts 47 866 n/a 90 95 6
Property 67 212 va - 212
Other 50 609 n/a - 609
Total assets 737 4 n/a 112 748 6
Fair value of scheme Labilities (714 B) 42 0) (14 5) (771 3)
Surplus/{defiat) in the scheme 226 (42 0) (3 3) (22 7)
Related deferred tax {liability)/asset (6 8) 126 10 68
Net penston asset/(liability) 158 (29 4) (2 3) {159)

The long-term expected rate of return and the assets in the scheme relating to the company at 31 March 2006 are

Unfunded
AWGPS pensions __ Hartlepeol Total

Expected Fair value Fair value Far value Farr value
rateof ofscheme  of scheme  of scheme  of scheme

return assets assets assets assets

%pa fm im £m fm

Equities 73 4719 n/a 22 474 1
Corporate bonds 47 i146 nfa - 1146
Gilts 43 780 nfa 86 866
Property 63 184 n/a - 184
Other 44 145 n/a — 145
Total assets 697 4 n/a 108 708 2
fair value of scheme habilities (702 4) (42 0) {139) (758 3)
Deficit in the scheme (50 {42 0) {31 (50 1)
Related deferred tax asset i5 126 09 i50
Net pension habibity (35) (25 4) {22) (35 1)
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The long-term expected rate of return and the assets in the scheme relating to the company at 31 March 2005 are

Equities

Corporate bonds

Gilts

Property

Other

Total assets

Fair value of scheme habilities
Deficit in the scheme

Related deferred tax asset
Net pension hability

Analysis of amounts charged against profits

The group’s pension expense for 1ts defined benefit schemes, in accordance with FRS 17, 15 set out below

2007 profit and loss account
Current service cost

Past service cost

Charge to operating profit

Expected return on pension scheme assets

Interest on pension scheme habilities

Amount credited/(charged) to other finance charges
Charge to profit on ordinary activities before taxation

2006 profit and loss account
Current service cost

Past service cost

Charge to operating profit

Expected return on pension scheme assets

Interest on pension scheme liabihities

Amount creditedf(charged) to other finance charges
Charge to profit on ordinary actvities before taxation

Unfunded
AWGPS pensions _ Hartlepoot Total
Expected  Farvalue  Farvalue  Farrvalue  Far value
rateof of scheme  of scheme  of scheme  of scheme
return assets assets assets assets
%pa £m fm fm £m
77 3524 nfa 19 3543
51 370 n/a - 370
47 1321 n/a 79 1400
67 160 na 03 16 3
48 41 2 n/a 01 413
5787 na 102 5889
(682 2) (40 2) (13 8) (736 2)
(103 5) (40 2} (36) (1473)
311 121 11 44 3
(72 9) (28 1} 25 (1030
Unfunded
AWGPS pensions  Hartlepool Total
£m fm im £m
{13 4) - (0 4) (13 8)
on - - {0 7}
(14 1) - (0 4} (14 5)
447 - 06 453
{34 3) (2 0 {0 6) (36 9}
10 4 (2 0) - 84
(37) (2 0) (0 4) 6 1)
Unfunded
AWGPS pensions  Hartlepool Total
Em Em fm £m
{150 - (03 (153)
{150} - (03) __(153)
391 - 05 396
{36 0} 21 07 (38 8)
31 (21) {02) 08
{11 9) (21) {0 5) {14 5)
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20 Pension commitments conuinued

{d} Analysis of amount recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses

2007 statement of total recogrised gans and losses
Actual return on pension scheme assets less expected return
Experience gains and losses ansing on the scheme hatiliies
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the
scheme habilities

Gan/{loss} recognised

2006 statement of total recogmised gains and iosses
Actual return on penston scheme assets less expected return
Expenence gains and losses ansing on the scheme liabilities
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the
scheme habilities

Gain/{loss) recognised

(e} Movementn hability duning the year

2007 movement in scheme deficit (before related deferred tax asset)
Defiait at 1 Apnl 2006

Current service cost

Past service cost

Prior year prepayment

Contributions

Net interest

Actuarial gain/(loss)

Surplus/{deficit) at 31 March 2007

2006 movement in scheme defiat (before related deferred tax asset)
Defiat at 1 Apnl 2005

Current service costs

Contributions

Bulk transfers

Net interest

Actuanial gair/(loss)

Deficit at 31 March 2006

Unfunded
AWGPS pensions  Hartlepool Total
Em fm im f£m
{14) - {03} a7
27) 02) - (2 9)
196 {0 2} - 194
155 (04 {0 3} 148
Unfunded
AWGPS pensions  Hartlepoal Total
fm fm £m £m
76 8 - 02 770
275 - 20 285
(14 9) (2 0) {16) (18 5)
89 4 (2 0 06 880
Unfunded
AWGPS pensions  Hartlepool Total
£m fm E£m Em
50 {42 Q) (31) (50 1)
(13 4} - (0 4) (138)
©7 - - {07}
22 - - 22
136 24 05 165
104 20 - 84
155 (0 4) {0 3) 148
226 {42 0) (33) (22 7)
uUnfunded
AWGPS pensions  Hartlepool Total
fm fm £m £m

(103 5} (40 2)

(36) (147 3}

(15 0} - 03 (15 3}
213 23 04 240
(0 3} - - (03)
31 {2 1) (0 2) 08
89 4 (2 0} 06 880
(5 0} {42 O) (31} (50 1)




{f) History of experience gains and losses

2007 details of expenence gains and losses

Difference between expected and actual returns on scheme assets
Amound {£ rmihon}

Percentage of scheme assets

Experience gains and losses on scheme habilities
Amount (£ milhon)
Percentage of present value of scheme labiltties

Amount in statement of total recogmsed gains and losses
Amount (£ milhon}
Percentage of present value of scheme liabihties

2006 details of experience gains and losses

Difference between expected and actual returns on scheme assets
Amount (£ million)

Percentage of scheme assets

Experience gains and losses on scheme habilities
Amount (£ million)
Percentage of present value of scheme labilities

Amount in statement of tota! recognised gains and losses
Amount (£ million)
Percentage of present value of scheme habilities

2005 details of experience gains and losses

Difference between expected and actual returns on scheme assets
Amount {£ million)

Percentage of scheme assets

Experience gains and losses on scheme habilities
Amount (£ million}
Percentage of present value of scheme habihties

Amount in statement of total recogrused gains and losses
Amount (£ mullion)
Percentage of present value of scheme habihities

57

Unfunded
AWGPS pensigns __ Hartlepoo! Total
{14) - {0 3) (7
0 2)% - 27% (0%
27 02 - 29
(0 4)% - - {0 4)%
155 o4 (03) 148
22%  (10%  (210% _ 19%
Unfunded
AWGPS pensions  Hartlepool Total
768 - 02 770
1 0% - 19% 10 9%
275 - 20 295
3 9% - 14 4% 39%
894 20) 06 830
12 7% {4 8)% 4 3% 11 6%
Unfunded
AWGPS penswons _ Hartlepool Total
82 - 03 85
14% - 2 9% 14%
81 - {4 2} 39
1 2% - {30 4)% 0 5%
226 {0 6) (3 6} 184
33% (15)% (26 1)% 2 5%
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Pension commitments continued

History of expenence gans and losses continued

2004 detatls of experience gains and losses

Difference between expected and actual returns on scheme assets
Armount (£ millign)

Percentage of scheme assets

Expertence gains and losses on scheme habtlities
Amount (£ million}
Percentage of present value of scheme liabilities

Amount in statement of total recogrised gains and losses
Amount (£ millton}
Percentage of present value of scheme habilities

2003 details of expenence gains and losses

Difference between expected and actual returns on scheme assets
Amount (£ millon)

Percentage of scheme assets

Experience gains and losses on scheme habibties
Amount (£ million}
Percentage of present value of scheme liabihities

Amount In statement of total recogmised gains and losses
Amount (£ mithon}
Percentage of present value of scheme habilities

Commitment under operating leases

At 31 March 2007 the group and company had commitments to make payments dunng the next 12 months under

non-cancellable operating leases which expire as follows

Within one year
Between two and five years
After five years

Share capital — equity shares

Authorised
860 million ordinary shares of £1 each

Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid
860 million ordinary shares of £1 each

Unfunded
AWGPS pensions Total
755 - 755
14 7% - 14 7%
533 22 511
B1% {5 5)% 7 3%
Unfunded
AWGPS _penstons Toial
(160 4} - (160 4)
(39 7)% - (39 %
- 09 09
- 2 4% 1%
(201 &) 09y (2029
(33 6)% (24)Y% (31 8)%

Group and company

2007 2006

Land and Land and
burldings Cther buildings Other
fm £m £m fm
01 17 - 12
04 40 02 43
24 - 27 -
29 57 29 55

Group and company

2007 2008
fm fm
860 0 860 0
860 0 860 0
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Movement in shareholders’ funds

Group
Profit
Share and loss
capital reserve Total
fm fm fm
At 1 Apnit 2006 860 0 7312 1,591 2
Total recogmsed gains and losses for the pened - 344 8 344 8
Dividend paid and committed - (443 1) {443 1)
At 31 March 2007 860 ¢ 6329 11,4929
The profit and loss reserve includes £15 ¢ million (2006 £35 1 million) stated net of deferred taxation of £6 8 million
(2006 £15 0 millton} tn respect of pension scheme habilities
Company
Profit
Share and loss
capital resenve Total
frn £m fm
At 1 April 2006 860 0 7249 1,584 9
Profit on ordinary actmities after taxation - 3286 3286
Actuanal gains recognised in the pension scheme - 148 148
Movement on deferred tax relating to the actuanal gain in the pension scheme - (51 (510
Dindend paid and commutted - {443 1) (443 1)
At 31 March 2007 860 0 6201 11,4801

Share-based payments

Prior to the takeover by Osprey Acquisitions Limited the AWG Plc group operated a SAYE share option scheme for all
employees Lo encourage participation in the group’s results The Anglian Water Services group was charged an amount
relating to the group's employees participating in the scheme Options were exercisable at a pnce equal to the quoted
market price of the company’s shares on the date of invitation less a discount of between 10 and 20 per cent The vesting
peniod was either three years or five years and there was then a further exerase period of six months from when the share
options become exercisatle after which penod the options lapse

Options became exercisable on the Offer from Osprey Acquisitions Limited being declared unconditional on 23 November
2006 As a result of the subsequent acquisition of AWG Plc by Osprey Acquisitions Limited, all share tncentive schemes
vested early, and an early vesting breakage charge of £3 4 milion was made to the company by AWG Ple for the amount
that otherwise would have been recogrised for services receved over the remainder of the vesting penod

Contingencies

At 31 March 2007 £130 3 milkon (2006 £137 0 million) of Advance Corporation Tax (ACT) has been surrendered to

the company by AWG Group Limited but rernains unutiised As part of the finanaal restructunng in 2002, the company
15 required to pay AWG Group Limited on utilisation of ACT An amount of £18 7 milhon has been recogrused for payment
to AWG Group Limited for ACT expected to be utiised No further prowision has been recognised in the group accounts
as it is uncertain whether further ACT will be utiised (1 e 1t s not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation}

The company, as part of the Anghan Water Services Financing group, guarantees uncondiionally and irrevocably

all the borrowings of Anglian Water Services Financing Ple, which at 31 March 2007 amounted to £4,327 S mllion
(2006 £3,948 6 miilion) The borrowings of Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited and Anglian Water Services
Overseas Holdings Limited are also guaranteed uncondittonally and irrevocably by the company Excluding the

£1,609 1 mullion loan made by the company to Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited, Anglian Water Services Holdings
Lirmited and Anghan Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited had no outstanding indebtedness at 31 March 2007

There are no other maternial contingent habiliies at 31 March 2007 for which provision has not been made in these
financial statements
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Statutory accounts continued

26

27

Notes to the financial statements continued

Events after balance sheet date
The final dmdend for 2006/7 of £35 0 million was approved by the board on 17 May 2007

Further to a proposed corporation tax rate change announced 1n the recent Budget, deferred tax reversing after

1 Apnil 2008 will be recognised at a rate of 28 per cent as opposed to the exsting rate of 30 per cent This will
result in a decrease in the discounted deferred tax hability and a corresponding credit to the profit and loss account
The impact 1s expected to be matenal but it 1s not possible to make a reliable estimate of the magrutude

Ultimate parent company

The company's immediate parent undertaking is Anglian Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited, a company
registered tn the Cayman Islands

Osprey Holdco Limited s the parent company of the largest group to consohidate the financial statements of the

company, copies of which can be obtained from the Company Secretary, Anglhian House, Ambury Road, Huntingden,
Cambndgeshire PE29 3NZ

Copues of the accounts of Anglian Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited, Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited
and Anglian Water Services Finanaing Plc can also be obtained from the Company Secretary at the above address

The directors consider Anghan Water Group Limited (formerly Osprey Jersey Holdco Limnted), a company registered

1 Jersey, to be the ultimate parent company Anghan Water Group Limited 1s itself owned by a consortium of investars
consisting of the Canada Pension Plan Investment Board, Colonial first State Global Asset Management, Industry Funds
Management, and 31 Group Plc
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Anghan Water Services Limited

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the *financial statements’) of Anghan Water Services
Linmited for the year ended 31 March 2007 which comprise the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated
statement of total recogrised gains and losses, the group and company balance sheets, the consolidated cash flow statement
and the related notes These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibiliues for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out

In the Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Qur responsibility s to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} This report, iIncluding the opimion, has been prepared for and only for
the company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose
We do not, in gving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this report 1s shown or tnto whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the
Directors’ report 15 consistent with the finanaial statements The information given In the Directors’ report includes that
speafic infoermation presented in the Operating and Finanaial Review that 1s cross referred from the Business Review
section of the Directors’ report

In addition we report to you If, In our opiman, the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not
received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or If infermation speafied by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it 1s consistent with the audrted finanaal
statements This other information compnises only the Chief Executive’s statement, the Operating and Financial Review, the
Directors’ report and the Statement of directors’ responsibilities We consider the imphcations for our report if we become

aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies wath the finanaal statements Qur responsibilities do not

extend 1@ any other nformation

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of ewidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the finanaial statements It also includes an assessment of the sigrificant estimates and judgements made by the directors
in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s
and company's arcumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to prowide us with sufficrent evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other rregulanty or error In forming our cpinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements

Opinion
In our cpinon

=> The finanaial statements give a true and fair iew, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the group's and the parent company's affairs as at 31 March 2007
and of the group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended

=> The finanaial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act 1985

=> The information given i the Directors’ report 1s consistent with the financial statements

p r

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Birmingham

15 June 2007




62

Regulatory accounts

Annual Report and Accounts 2007

anghanwater co uk

Regulatory accounts and required regulatory information

The regulatory accounts and required regulatory iformation on pages 62 to 85 are provided to comply with
Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment of Anghan Water Services Lirited as a water and sewerage undertaker
under the Water Industry Act 1991

The regulatory accounts are prepared in accordance with the Requlatory Accounting Guidelines issued by Ofwat

There are differences between UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines
Where different treatments are specified under each, the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines take precedence

A glossary of regulatory terms 1s shown on page 88




a)

b)

Statement of directors’ responsibilities for regulatory information 63

Further to the requirements of company law, the directors are required to prepare accounting statements which comply
with the requirements of Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment of the company as a water and sewerage
undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 and Regulatory Accounting Guidelines sssued by Ofwat

This addstionally requires the directors to

=> Confirm that, in therr opinion, the company has sufficient financial resources and facilies, management resources
and methods of planning and internal control for the next 12 months

=> Confirm that, in ther opinion, the company has sufficent nghts and assets which would enable a special
adrunistrator to manage the affairs, business and property of the company

=> Confirm that, in ther opinion, the company has contracts with any associate company with the necessary provisions
and requirements concerning the standard of service to be supplied to ensure compliance with the company’s
obligations as a water and sewerage undertaker

=> Report to Ofwat changes in the company’s activities which may be matenal in relation to the company’s ability
to finance its regulated activities

=> Undertake transactions entered nto by the appointed business, with or for the benefit of associated companies
or other businesses or activities of the appointed business, at arm’s-length

=> Keep proper accounting records which comply with Condition F

These responsibilities are additional to those already set out in the statutory financial statements

In the case of each of the persons who are directors at the time when the report 1s approved under Section 234ZA
of the Companies Act the following applies

so far as the director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are unaware, and

he/she has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of that information
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Notes on regulatory accounts '

1 General
As discussed in the Directors’ report in the statutory financial statements, the company’s activities are regulated by the
conditions of a licence granted to the company by the Secretary of State for the Environment With certain exceptions,
the regulatory provisions do not apply to business activities which are not connected with the carrying out of the water
and sewerage function, these business activities are referred to as non-appotnted business (see note 3 on page 70)

An analysis of the regulatory historical cost profit and loss account and regulatory historical cost balance sheet between
appointed and non-appointed business 1s set out on pages 65 and 67 A current cost profit and loss account and current
cost balance sheet are shown on pages 74 and 75 Other current cost disclosures appear on pages 76 to 84 Additional
information required by the licence 1s shown on pages 69 to 73

Under the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines the treatment of certain turnover and expenditure items differs from that
disclosed in the statutory financial statements

2 Protection of the regulated business

(@) In the opinton of the directors the company will have available to it sufficient financial resources and facities to enable
it to carry out, for at least the next 12 months, the regulated activities (including the investment programme necessary
to fulfil sts obligations under the Instrument of Appointment}

{b} In the opimion of the directors the company will, for at least the next 12 months, have available to it management
resources and methods of planning and internal control which are sufficient to carry out the regulated actvities
{including the investment programme necessary to fulfil its obligations under the Instrument of Appointment)

() In the opinion of the directors all contracts entered into with any associate company include all necessary provisions
and requirements concerning the standard of service to be supplied to the company to ensure that it 1s able to meet
all its obligations as a water and sewerage undertaker

3  Arm’s-length trading
In the opinion of the directors, the company was in compliance with paragraph 3 1 of Condition F of the licence
throughout the year




Regulatory historical cost profit and loss account

for the year ended 31 March

Turnover

Operating costs
Profit on sale of fixed assets

Operating profit
Net interest payable
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Taxation
- current tax
- deferred tax
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation

Dividends

Loss for the year

65
2007 2006
Non Nen
Appointed  appointed Total  Appoinied  appointed Total
fm fm £m im £m fm
909 4 96 9190 856 7 a0 8657
(513 5) (5 8) (519 3) {502 3) 56 (507 9}
51 = 51 18 - 18
401 0 38 4048 3562 34 3596
(58 3) {on (58 4) (62 5) - {62 5)
3427 37 3464 2937 34 2971
(29 6) 11 (307) (22 6) (10) {23 6)
129 - 129 (26 6) - {26 6}
3260 26 3286 2445 24 2469
{440 5) {26) (44371} (301 2) (45 {(3057)
{114 5) - (1149 (56 7) (2 1} (58 8)
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Regulatory historical cost statement of total recognised gains

and losses for the appointed business
for the year ended 3t March

2007 2006

im im

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 3260 2445
Actuanal gains recognised in the pension scheme 148 880
Movement on deferred tax relating to the actuanal gain in the pension scheme 51 (26 5)
Deferred tax on share based payments - 38
Total recognised gains and losses for the year 3357 3098




Regulatory historical cost balance sheet

at 31 March

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand
Investments and short-term deposits
Infrastructure renewals prepayment

Creditors amounts faling due within one year
Short-term borrowings

Other creditors

Corporation tax payable

Net current assets
Total assets less current habilities

Creditors amounts falling due after more
than one year

Loans and cther borrowtngs

Cther creditors

Provisions for habilites and charges
Deferred tax

QOther provisions

Defined benefit pension scheme habilities
Defined benefit pension scheme assets

Net assets employed

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Profit and loss account
Capital and reserves

Y

2007 2006
Non

Non Appointed  appointed Total
Appointed  appointed Total restated restated restated
fm £m £m fm fm im
4,153 4 - 4,153%1 39566 - 39566
1,609 2 - 16092 16092 ~ 1,6092
5,762 3 - 57623 55658 - 55658
117 - 17 106 - 1086
4065 - 4065 163 6 - 1696
663 11 67 4 383 10 403
2829 - 2829 461 2 - 461 2
541 - 541 363 - 363
8215 11 8226 7170 10 7180
(78 6} - {78 6) (202 4) - (202 4)
(369 1) - (3691) (341 6) - (341 6)
(36 7) (t 1) {37 8) {40 6) (10 (41 6)
(484 4) (11) (485 5) {584 6) {10} (585 6)
3371 - 3371 1324 - 1324
6.0994 - 60994 56982 - 56982
(4,371 5) - {43715) (3.8364) ~ (3,836 4)
(112 3) - (112 3) {1026} - {102 &)
(4,483 B) - (4,4838) (3,9390) - {3,9390)
{97 2) - (97 2) (113 2) - (113 2)
{22 4) - (22 4) (26 0} - {26 Q)
(317 - 31 7) {351} - {351)
158 - 158 - - -
{135 5) — {135 5) (174 3} - (174 3)
1,480 1 - 1,480 1% 1,584 9 - 1,584 9
8600 - 8600 860 0 - 8600
6201 - 6201 724 9 - 724 9
1,480 1 - 1,4801 1,584 9 - 15849

The prior year comparatives have been restated to reflect the disclosure changes as required by RAG 3 06
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Historical cost reconciliation between

statutory accounts and regulatory accounts
for the year ended 31 March

Reconciliation between historical cost statutory and regulatory accounts for the appointed
and non-appointed business

2007 2007
£fm tm
Statutory _ Regulatory Explanation

Profit and loss account

Operating profit 404 8! 404 8 No difference
Profit after taxation 328 6' 3286 No difference

Balance sheet

Tangible fixed assets (net book value) 42071 41531 The difference of £54 million
15 attnbutable to the infrastructure
renewals prepayment as this 1s
excluded from the fixed assets
net book value in the regulatory
accounts This 1s in ine wath
Regulatory Accounting Guidehnes
306 as FRS 15 15 not apphed for
infrastructure renewals accounting
for regulatory accounting purposes

' The statutory figures mentioned above relate to company cnly and nat the consohdated group results




Additional information required by the licence 69

s

Accounting policies
The accounting policies are set out in the statutory financial statements, except that, as noted on page 64, under the
Regulatory Accounting Guidelines certain turnover and expenditure items are treated differently in the regulatory accounts

Cumulatve infrastruciure renewals expenditure, net of depreciation, has been included within current assets in the
regulatory histoncal cost balance sheet in accordance with Regulatary Accounting Guidelines 3 06 This represents a
departure from the accounting policy adopted In the company’s statutory financial statements and Finanaial Reporting
Standard (FRS} 15, which require this amount to be included within fixed assets

The company has adopted the changes to Regulatory Accounting Guidelines set out in RD04/07 in these regulatory
accounts The changes encompass the adoption of RAG 1 04 ‘Guidehne for Accounting for Current Costs and Regulatory
Capital Values', RAG 3 06 'Guideline for the content of Regulatory Accounts’ and RAG 4 03 ‘Guideline for the analysis of
Operating Costs and Assets” that require a number of presentational changes and changes to the basis of the calculation
of real financial capital maintenance adjustments

The prior year comparatives have been restated to reflect the disclosure changes as required by RAG 3 06

Link between directors’ pay and standards of performance

Directors’ pay compnses a package of base salary together with a performance related bonus and a long-term incentve
plan Base salary for the Chief Executve Officer and his direct reports 1s set by the AWG remuneration commitiee, advised
by independent consultants Certain directors’ bonuses are linked to the standards of performance of the company,

and therefore in accordance with RAG 3 06 the following disclosures deal with these bonuses only Under the performance
bonus scheme, directors have varying percentages of their bonus related to the company's overall performance and

to personal performance This ensures that each director 15 rewarded against the metnes that he or she can most directly
influence as well as the overall Anghan Water Services performance targets These directors have at least 55 per cent of
their personal bonus linked to the overall company targets (shown in the table below} For the year ended 31 March 2007
the results for the year (financial and non-financial) resulted i the following performance assessment against the overall
company targets

2007 2006

% %

Financial performance 420 500
Capital delvery index 200 200
Overall performance assessment (OPA) 16 0 00
Customer service index {CSI) 150 75
930 775

Capital delivery and Customer Service Index targets were exceeded Against the targets set the company partly met its
finanaial performance objectives and OPA target If the OPA outturn is confirmed as being within the top two a small
additrional payment wall be paid in the next payroll following the confirmation The component of the bonus relating

to personal performance reflects on indmvidual’s achievement of personal targets set for the year

Bonuses paid to directors are as follows

2007 2006
£000 £000
P Simpson 1225 1080
O Hipple 756 62 2
J Spencer 638 539
C Newsome 69 7 504

For 2007/8 a similar arrangernent exists and will include all Executive Directors
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Additional information required by the licence continued

¢ Unk between directors’ pay and standards of performance continued
The element which relates to company performance 15 made up as follows

%

Financizl performance 60
Capital dehvery index 15
Overall performance assessment (OPA) 15
Customer service index (CSH 10
100

Stretching targets are set for the company's performance against these four metnics These targets are set at the
begmming of the year

The financial performance element covers a number of targets in respect of profitability, costs and cash flow The capital
delivery ndex 15 a basket of measures which reflects the performance of the capital programme and covers amounts

of work completed, regulatory and other cutputs delivered, and efficencies justified The element attnbutable to OPA
measures the company’s performance on Ofwat’s OPA league table This 1s an effective way of measuring and rewarding
performance on this senes of metnics that cover customer service and water and wastewater quality and compliance

The customer senace index measures the number of jobs the company completes within specified timescales, service
delwery failures, customer chase calls and the size of the backlog

3 Information in relation to allocations and apportionments between the appointed and any other business
or activity of the appointee or assocated company
The non-appointed business relates mainly to legal searches to locate utilty infrastructure, recreation services,
leisure services and the provision of consultancy services The North Tees water supply agreement to the Huntsman
Petrochemucal site, which 15 not in the Anghan Water area, has also been treated as non-appointed business

A proportion of the operating costs relating to these activities 1s directly incurred and does not require allocation
Other relevant costs have been allocated according to time spent on these activities

4 Allocation to prinaipal service

{a) Operating costs are incurred directly by specific service and have not required allocation Indirect costs are allocated
on aither a causal hink basis or according to locat managers' assessments The allocation to pnincipal service of the charge
for infrastructure renewals 15 based on the Asset Management Plan {AMP)

{b) Capital costs, and hence the related depreciation charges, are incurred directly by specific service and have not
required allocation
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{a)

Information tn respect of transactions with any other business or actvity of the appointee

or any associated company

71

To the best of the directors’ knowledge, all appropnate transactions with associated compames have been disclosed

In notes {a) to (h) below

On 30 July 2002 £1,609 1 mithon was tent by the company to Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited No other sums

were lent by the appointee 1o associated companies at 31 March 2007

Sums borrowed by the appointee from Anglian Water Senaces Finanaing Plc, its financing subsidiary at 31 March 2007, were

Interest

Principal Repayment rate

Type of loan amount date %
Fixed rate 1000 2014 12 375
Fixed rate 2500 2022 5837
Fixed rate 2000 2023 6 875
Fixed rate 2000 2029 6 625
Fixed rate 2460 2030 6293
Fixed rate {v) 2750 2012/2037 7 882
Fixed rate (v) 2500 2015 5250
Fixed rate 1500 201772040 5 500
Fixed rate 2293 2009 5 375
Fixed rate 4532 2013 4625
Fixed rate 710 2008 7010
Fixed rate 80 2009 7 070
‘Mark to market’ adjustment ()} 03 2009 -
Fixed rate 163 2009 7130
Fixed rate 1385 2011 7230
Floating 500 2007  LIBOR plus 0 25
Floating 1000 2057 LBORplus Q34
Index linked (1} 168 2 2008 5500
Index hinked (1} 1802 2020 4125
Index linked (1) 859 2024 3 666
{ndex finked {(n} 2291 2032 3070
Index Iinked (n) 687 2032 3070
Index hnked (n) 4269 2035 2 400
Index inked (n) 514 2046 1700
Index linked (n) 513 2046 1700
Index linked (u) 412 2056 1715
Index hinked (u) 515 2056 1678
Index linked (u) 617 2049 1790
Index linked {u) 17 2008 -
Index hinked (1) (2 6) 2008 -
Index hnked (1) 1010 2057 1378
Index hnked {(n) 505 2056 1383
Index linked () 01 2057 -
Index linked swap (1), {iv) 218 2024 -
Index linked swap (1), {v) 254 2030 -
Index linked swap (m), (v} 275 2013 -

4,3757

LIBOR 15 the London Inter Bank Offer Rate
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Additional iInformation required by the licence continued

5 Information in respect of transactions with any other business or actvity of the appointee
or any assoctated company continued
() As part of a finanaal restructuring of the company 1n 2002, back-to-back loans to the company from AWG Group
Limited were reassigned from AWG Group Limited to Anglian Water Services Financing Pic The ‘mark to market’
adjustments relate to the reassignment of these leans at fair value rather than book value The difference between
the book value and {farr value 1s being amortised at a constant rate on the carrying amount of the debt over the
remarnder of its life

(n} The value of the capital and interest elements of the index inked debt 15 inked to movements in the Retail
Price index (RPI)

(w) The cormpany, through its finanang subsidiary, Anglian Water Services Finanaing Plc, has entered into swap
agreements that convert its debt into either floating rate debt or index linked debt m accordance with the
company's hedging policy

(v} The values of the notional capital on these index inked swaps are linked to movements in RPI The increase
In the notional capital value 1s payable at the final maturity date of the swaps

{(v) Legal matunity of these instruments 15 the second of the years quoted Coupon ‘step-up’ 15 in the first of the
years quoted

(b) Dwidends payable
Admdend of £440 5 milion 1s payable for the year (2006 £301 2 million) Of this dividend, £192 6 million
(2006 £240 7 million) was paid to Anghan Water Services Haldings Limited, a parent undentaking, in order for 1t to
service the interest payable to the company on the inter-company loan of £1,609 1 mullion (see note 5 (a) on page 71)
The remaining £0 5 million which has been committed to be paid will be settled in June 2007 The special distnbution
of £215 0 millon (apponted £212 4 million and non-appointed £2 6 million)} was paid on 7 March 2007 as a finanaial
restructuring dividend to increase geaning in the company The overall amount of the company’s normal dwdends wall
not exceed the free cash flow (defined as operating cash flow less interest and capital maintenance payments) generated
by AWS and in practice will be imited to a net debt to RCV geanng ratio of 83 per cent The dmidends declared or paid
will not imparr the ability of the company to finance the Appointed Business, and the dmdend policy 1s compliant with
Condition F of the Licence

{€) Guarantees/securnities
The company, as part of the Anghan Water Services Financing group, guarantees unconditionally and irrevocably all
the borrawings of Anghan Water Services Financing Plc, 1ts wholly owned subsidiary, which at 31 March 2007 amounted
to £4,327 5 million (2006 £3,948 6 milion) The borrowings of Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited and Anglian
Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited are also guaranteed unconditionally and irrevocably by the company
Excluding the £1,609 1 million Joan made by the company to Anghan Water Services Holdings Uimited, Anghan Water
Services Holdings Limuted and Anghan Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited had no outstanding indebtedness |
at 31 March 2007 (2006 nil) ) |

(d) Supply of services
Recharges by the appointee to associated companies

Value
Nature of transaction Company Terms of supply fm
Legal AWG Central Services Limited Actual costs 05
HR Charges AWG Central Services Limited Actual costs 06
Corporate Responsibility and Communications AWG Central Services Limited Actual costs 01
Payrall Services AWG Central Services Lirmited Actual costs 01




(e}

{9

th

==

=

Services supplied to the appointee by assoctated companies

Turnover of

73

associated

company Value
Nature of transaction Company fm Terms of supply fm
Rental of office accommodation AWG Central Services Uimited 186 Space apportionment 07
Directors’ costs AWG Central Services Limited 186 Time apportionment 06
Internal audit services AWG Central Services Limited 186 Negotiated 05
Insurance administration AWG Central Services Limited 186 Negotated 03
Taxation services AWG Central Servtces Limited 186 Negotiated 02
External audit services AWG Central Services Limited 186 Pass through 02
Sharesave costs AWG Central Services Umited 186 Pass through 16
Other pass through costs AWG Central Services Limited 186 Pass through 02
Employee communication AWG Central Services Limited 186 Pass through 01
Long-term incentive plan {LTIP)  AWG Central Services Lmited 186 Pass through 39
& Annual retaned bonus
scheme (ARBS)
Executive share option scheme  AWG Central Services Limited 186 Pass through 01
(ESOS)
Developer services and Mornison Utility Senaces Limited 4712 Competitive tendering 148
network contracts
Engineering, construction Purac Limited! 203 Competitive tendering 04
and fabrication
Facilities management Morrison Facliies Services Limited 1829 Other market testing 02
services
Tax? AWG Group Limited - Surrender of group lax losses 243

48 1°

* This tetal includes amounts of £15 0 million that were capitalised by the appointed busingss

! Purac ceased to be an associated company from November 2006

* Payment for group relief and ACT unibsed to reduce AWS corporation 1ax habihiies

Chantable and pohtical donations

Dunng the year the company made a payment of £1 0 million {2006 £1 0 million) to the Anghan Water Trust Fund

This was treated as an operating cost in the financial statements
No political donations were made during the year

Omussions of nghts
No matenal omissions took place during the year

Wawers
There were no maternal waivers dunng the year

Ring-fencing

The company has been comphant with Condition K3 1 of the Licence throughout the year
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Current cost profit and loss account for the appointed business
for the year ended 31 March

2007 2006

Appointed  Appointed

Notes fm fm
2 Turnover 909 4 8567
4 Current cost operating costs (6033} (5815)
3 Operating income 17 03
307 8 2755

3.9 Working capital adjustment 69 (17 9)
Current cost operating profit 3147 2576

Net interest payabte {58 3} (62 5)

9 Finanang adjustment (69) 695
Current cost profit before taxation 2495 2646
Current tax {29 6} (22 8)
Deferred tax 129 (26 6)
Current cost profit attnbutable to shareholder 2328 2154
Dividends {440 5) (301 2)

B Current cost loss for the year {207 7) {85 B)

The notes on pages 77 to 84 form part of these current cost finanaial statements




Notes

Current cost balance sheet for the appointed business
at 31 March

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Third party contnbutions since 31 March 1990

Working capital

Cash at bank and in hand
Investments and short-term deposits
Infrastructure renewals prepayment
Net operating assets

Non-gperating assets and habiliwes
Short-term borrowings

Non-trade debtors

Non-trade creditors due within one year
Investments

Corporation tax payahle

Total non-operating assets

Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Loans and other borrowings

Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred tax

Defined benefit pension scheme liabilities
Defined benefit pension scheme assets
Other provisions

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital

Profit and loss account

Current cost reserve at 31 March
Total capital and reserves

The notes on pages 77 to 84 form part of these current cost financial statements

75
2007 2006
Restated
frn fm
22,0620 20,9375
(7391} (682 5)
21,3229 20,2550
(1322) (142 8)
66 3 393
2829 461 2
541 363
21,5940 20,6490
(786) (202 4)
1980 182
(7 4) (27 5}
1,6092 11,6092
367 (40 6}
1,6845 1,359
4,371 5) (3,836 4}
97 2) (113 2)
(317 (35 1)
158 -
(22 4) (26 1)
(135 5) (174 4)
18,7715 17,9951
8600 860 0
{114 7) 853
18,0262 17,0498
187715 17,9951

The prior year comparatives have been restated ta reflect the disclosure changes as required by RAG 3 06

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 15 June 2007 and signed on its behalf by

Peter Simpson Scott Longhurst
Chief Qperating Officer Group Finance Director
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Current cost cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March

2007 2006
Non Non
Appointed  Appointed Total Appomnted  Appointed Total
£m Em im £m im im
Net cash inflow from operating activities 5547 38 5585 5254 3a 5288
Returns on investment and servicing of finance
Interest receved 2180 - 2180 2669 - 2669
Interest paid (217 5) {on (217 6) (244 7) - {244 7}
Interest element of finance lease rental payments (59 - (59 {6 4) - (64}
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from returns
on investments and servicing of finance (5 4) {01 {(55) 158 - 158
Taxation
Corporation tax paid 91) (10} (16 1) (11) (0 9) (2 0}
Payments to other AWG Plc group undertakings (24 3) -~ (24 3) (5 4) — (5 4)
{33 4) (1 0) (34 4) (6 5) {0 9} (7 4)
Capital expenditure and finanaal investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (345 7) - (3457 (2208) - (220 8)
Grants and contributions receved 330 - 330 241 - 241
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (70 3) - {70 3) (43 2) - (43 2)
Disposal of tangible fixed assets 56 - 56 20 - 20
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure
and financial investment (377 4} - {377 4) (237 9) - {237 9)
Equity dividends paid (440 0} (26) (4426) (301 2) 45 (3057
Net cash outflow before management
of hquid resources and financing (301 5) 01 (301 ¢) {4 4) 20 6 4)
Management of liquid resources
Net cash outflow from management of
liquid resources (19 7) - (197 87 1) - (87 1)
Net cash outflow before financing (321 2) 01 (321 1) (91 5) (2 0) (93 5)
Financing
Increase in loans 550 0 - 5500 3999 - 3999
Repayment of amounts borrowed (177 9) - (17790 (292 8 - (292 8)
Capntal element of finance lease rental payments (239 - (239 {20 5) - (20 5)
Net cash inflow from financing 3482 - 348 2 866 - 866
Increasef(decrease) in cash 270 01 271 {4 9) 20 (69

The notes on page 84 form part of this cash flow statement




(a)

{b)
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(D)

Notes to the current cost financial statements

Accounting policies

General

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 1ssued
by Ofwat for modified real terms finanaal statements suitable for regulation in the water industry

They measure profitability on the basis of real inancal capital maintenance, in the context of assets which are valued
at thair current cost value to the business

The regulatory accounts are separate from the statutory financial statements of the company There are differences
between the United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) and the basis of preparation of
information provided in the regulatory accounts because the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines speafy alternative
treatment or disclosure in certan respects Where the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines do not specically address
an accounting issue, then they require UK GAAP to be followed

Change In regulatory accounting guidetines

The company has adopted the changes to Regulatory Accounting Guidelines set out in RDO4/Q7 in these regulatory
accounts The changes encompass the adoption of RAG 1 04 ‘Guideline for Accounting for Current Costs and Regulatory
Capntal Values’, RAG 3 06 ‘Guideline for the content of Regulatory Accounts’ and RAG 4 03 ‘Guideline for the analysis of
Operating Costs and Assets’ that require a number of presentational changes and changes te the basis of the calculation
of real finanaial capital maintenance adjustments The effect of these changes on the 2006/7 current cost profit and loss
account, 1s a credit of £24 6 million for the working capital adjustment and a charge of £131 6 million for the financing
adjustment In accordance with RD04/07 the comparative figures in the current cost profit and loss account have not been
restated for the change in the basis of the calculation of real financal capital maintenance adjustments The comparative
figures in the current cost accounts have been restated for the presentational changes required by the above RAG's

The accounting policies used are the same as those adopted in the statutory financial statements, except as set out below

Tangible fixed assets
Tangble fixed assets have been valued in accordance with Regulatory Accounting Guideline 1 04 {Guidelne for Accounting
for Current Costs and Regulatory Capital Values) on a modern equivalent asset (MEA) basis

Depreciation 1s charged over the estimated remaining econemic hfe of the asset Infrastructure assets are not depreciated
Additions durning the year are taken at their histonic cost values Disposals are stated at the value of the replacement assets

tand and buildings

Non-specialised operational properties are valued on the basis of open market value for existing use as part of the
periodic Asset Management Plan (AMP) reviews and are expressed in real terms by indexation using the Retail Pnce
Index (RP1) thereafter

Specialised operational properties acquired since 31 March 1990 are valued at the lower of depreciated replacement
cost and recoverable amount, restated annually between penodic AMP reviews by adjusting for inflation as measured
by changes in the RPI The unamortised portion of third party contributions received 1s deducted in arniving at net
operating assets (as described below)

Infrastructure assets
Mains, sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage reservoirs, dams, sludge pipelines and sea outfalls are valued
at replacement cost, on an MEA basis, determined principally on the basis of data provided by the AMP

A process of continuing refinement of asset records i1s expected 10 produce adjustments to existing values when penodic
reviews of the AMP take place In the intervening years, values are restated to take account of changes in the general
level of inflation, as measured by changes in the RPI over the year

(m) Other fixed assets

All other fixed assets are valued penodically at depreciated replacement costs Between penodic AMP reviews, values
are restated for inflaton as measured by changes in the RPI

{~v} Surplus land

Surplus land 15 valued at recoverable amount, taking into account that part of any proceeds to be passed on to customers
under Conditron B of the Licence
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1 Accounting policies continued

{c) Modern equivalent asset (MEA) valuation
A review of the MEA valuation and asset stock 1s undertaken as part of each five-year penodic review The revised values
ansing from this review, once deemed effective by Ofwat, prowide the basis for calculating the MEA in the current cost
financial statements

{d

—

Grants and other third party contnibutions

Grants, infrastructure charges and other third party contributions received since 31 March 1990 are carned forward as
deferred income to the extent that any balance has not been credited to revenue The balance carned forward is after
restatement for the change in the RPI for the year

(e} Real financial capital mamntenance adjustments
These adjustments are made to hustorical cost profit in order to arrive at profit after the maintenance of financial capital
in real terms

Depreciation adjustment - this is the difference between depreciation based on the current cost value of assets in these
financial statements and depreciation charged in arriving at histonical cost profit

Disposal of fixed assets adjustment - the difference between the values of realised assets in these current cost financial
statements and In the historical cost financial statements

The depreciation adjustment is incorporated within operating costs in the profit and loss account The disposal of fixed
assets adjustment 15 incorporated within operating income in the profit and loss account

Working capital adjustment — this is calculated by applying the changes in the RPI over the year to the opening working
capital as set out 1in note 6

Financaing adjustment — this is calculated by applying the changes in the RPI aver the year to the opeming balance of net
finance, which comprises all monetary assets and habthties in the balance sheet apart from those included in working
capital, deferred tax, dvidends payable and index linked debt

2 Turnover for the appointed business

2007 2006

Water Sewerage
Water Sewerage service serace Totat
service service Total Restated Restated Restated
£m fm £m fm fm fm
Measured 2090 287 4 496 4 183 2 2539 4371
Unmeasured 1289 2068 3357 1287 2134 3421
Trade Effluent - 75 75 - 72 72
Large user and specal agreement 266 232 498 283 255 538
Nen-potable large user and special agreement 79 - 79 70 - 70
Rechargeable works 04 03 07 04 01 05
Bulk supplies/inter company payments 84 16 100 64 16 80
Third party services (including non-potable water) 167 19 186 138 17 155
Other sources 08 06 14 04 06 10
Total turnover 3820 527 4 909 4 3544 502 3 856 7

The prior year comparatives have been restated to reflect the disclosure changes as required by RAG 3 06

3 Operating iIncome and working capital adjustment for the appointed business

2007 2006
Water Sewerage Water Sewerage
service service Total service service Total
£m fm £m Em £m fm
Current cost profit on disposal of fixed assets 08 08 17 02 01 03
Working capital adjustment 35 34 69 89 1Y) (17 9)




4 Analysis of operating costs and fixed asset net book values by service

79

2007
Service analysis
Water service Sewerage service
Resources Water Sludge Sewage Sewerage
and senice Sewage  treatment TaD service
treatment  Distnbution subtotal  Sewerage  treatment and disposal subtotal subtotal
fm £m £m £m £m im fm £m
Oirect costs
Employment costs 65 77 142 04 196 79 275 379
Power 133 88 221 45 174 25 199 244
Hired and contracted services 28 90 118 50 76 136 212 262
Matenals and consumables 34 11 45 15 63 66 129 144
Services charges 88 - 88 11 54 - 54 65
Bulk supply imports 09 - 09 - - - - -
Other direct costs 01 02 03 01 02 01 03 04
Total direct costs 358 268 62 0 226 565 307 872 1098
General and support
expenditure 80 123 203 84 159 103 262 346
Total functional expenditure 438 391 g8z2¢ 310 724 a0 113 4 144 4
Business activities
Customer services 110 i24
Scientific services 47 32
Other business activities 24 26
Total business activities 181 182
Rates 221 179
Doubtiul debts 66 87
Total less third party services 1297 1892
Third party services 45 07
Total operating costs 1342 1899
Capntal costs
Infrastructure renewals
charge o4 286 290 234 - - - 234
Depreciation’ {allocated) 49 2 198 690 278 1153 106 1259 1537
Amortisation of deferred
grants (5 4) (4 0)
Business activities depreciation’
(non allocated) 36 54
Capital maintenance excluding
third party services 96 2 1785
Third party services -
capital maintenance 35 10
Totat capital maintenance 997 1795
Total operating costs? 2339 3694
Current cost accounting
{modern equivalent
asset values)
Senice activities 1,307 6 52697 65773 136046 1,7784 107 11,8801 154847
Business actvilies - - {22 5) - - - - {337)
Service totals 6,554 8 15,451 0
Service assets for third parties {62 O {10 8}
Total 6,492 8 15,440 2

' On a current cost basis

2 Included within total operaung costs are reactive and planned mamntenance expenditure on infrastructure assets of £13 3 million
This 5 sphit £8 § mallion water distnbution and £4 8 milhon sewerage

!
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Analysis of operating costs and fixed asset net book values by service continued

2006
Service analyss
Water sernce Sewerage service
Resources Water Sludge Sewage Sewerage
and service Sewage  treatment T&D service
treatment  Distribution subtotal Sewerage treatement and disposal subtotal subtotal
£m £m £m fm fm fm fm fm
Direct costs
Employment costs 61 72 133 105 179 68 247 352
Power 114 74 188 37 145 23 168 205
Hired and contracted services 37 114 151 48 83 157 240 288
Matenals and consumables 38 12 50 14 62 67 129 14 3
Services charges 91 - g1 11 53 - 53 64
Bulk supply imports 07 - 07 - - - - -
QOther direct costs 05 13 18 10 10 05 15 25
Total direct costs 353 285 638 225 532 320 852 1077
General and support
expenditure 83 78 16 1 56 123 93 216 272
Total functional expenditure 436 363 799 281 655 413 106 8 1349
Business activities
Customer services 116 138
Scientific services 56 35
Other business activities 32 38
Total business activities 204 211
Rates 191 162
Doubtful debts 69 92
Total less third party services 126 3 181 4
Third party services 24 05
Total operating costs 1287 1819
Capital costs
Infrastructure renewals
charge 02 230 232 200 - - - 200
Movement in infrastructure
renewal accrual/prepayment - 42 472 36 - - - 36
Depreciation’ {allocated) 481 17 9 660 261 108 9 101 1190 145 1
Amortisation of deferred
grants {4 4) (38)
Bustness actmties depreciation’
{nan allocated) 51 76
Capital mantenance excluding
third party services 941 1725
Third party services -
capital maintenance 33 10
Total capital maintenance 974 1735
Total operating costs? 2261 3554
Current cost accounting
{modern equivalent
asset values)
Service activities 1,223 1 49285 61516 12,9143 1,688 2 965 1,7847 146990
Business activities - - 54 - - - - 80
Service totals 6,157 0 14,707 0
Service assets for third parties 624 112
Total 6,2194 14,718 2

' On a current cost basis

1 Included wathin total operating costs are reactve and planned maintenance expenditure on infrastructure assets of £13 9 midhon
This 1s sphit £10 3 milhon water distnbution and £3 6 million sewerage




5

(a)

(b}

()

Fixed assets

Fixed assets by type - water service
Gross replacement cost

At 1 Apnl 2006

RPI adjustment

Disposals

Additions

At 31 March 2007

Depteciation

At 1 Apnl 2006
RPI adjustment
Disposals

Charge for the year
At 31 March 2007

Net book amount at 31 March 2007
Net book amount at 1 Apnl 2006

Fined assets by type — sewerage service

Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnil 2006

RPI adjustment
Disposals

Additions

At 31 March 2007

Depreaation

At Y Apnil 2006
RP1 adjustment
Bisposals

Charge for the year
At 31 March 2007

Net book amount at 31 March 2007
Net bock amount at 1 Apnl 2006

Fixed assets by type - total
Gross replacement cost

At 1 Aprd 2006

RPI adjustment

Disposals

Additions

At 31 March 2007

Depreciation

At 1 Apnl 2006
RPI adjustment
Disposals

Charge for the year
At 31 March 2007

Net book amount at 31 March 2007
Net book amount at 1 April 2006

81

Non-
Specalised  speaahsed Infra- Other
operational  operayonal structure tangible

assets  properues assets assets Total
im fm fm fm fm
1,730 7 113 54065 2216 71,3701
834 05 2607 107 3553
(16) - (19} (02) 37
797 08 350 223 1378
1,892 2 126 57003 2544 7,8595
942 2 29 - 2059 11510
454 01 - 99 554
o2 - - {0 2) 049
687 02 - 72 761
1,056 1 32 - 2228 1,282 1
836t 894 57003 316 65774
7885 84 54065 157 6,219
4,889 4 135 12,3595 2951 17,5575
2357 07 5958 14 2 846 4
{0 5) - - (0 4} 09
1431 11 398 334 217 4
5,267 7 153 12,9951 3423 18,6204
2,548 7 32 - 2872 2,8391
1229 02 - 138 1369
- - - {04 {0 4)

152 3 02 - 77 160 2
28239 36 - 3083 3,1358
2,443 8 197 12,9951 340 154846
2,3407 103 12,3595 79 14,7184
6,620 1 248 17,7660 S167 24,9276
3191 12 856 5 249 11,2017
(2 1) - (19 (0 6) (4 6)
2228 19 748 557 3552
7,1599 279 186954 5967 26,4799
3,490 9 61 - 4931 3,9901
168 3 03 - 237 1923
02) - - {0 6) (0 8)
2210 04 - 149 2363
3,880 0 68 ~ 531144179
3,2799 211 18,6954 656 22,0620
3,1292 187 17,7660 236 209375
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Notes to the current cost financial statements continued

Fixed assets continued

In the preparation of its statutery financial statements, the company has followed common industry practice and adopted
the infrastructure renewals accounting basis as required by FRS 15 Tangible fixed assets However, for the purposes of the
regulatory financal statements, Ofwat has requested that FRS 15 15 not applied for infrastructure renewals accounting,
thereby providing a basis consistent with prior years A reconaihation to the tangible fixed assets shown in the statutory

financial statements 15 set out below

Cost

At 31 March 2007 per regulatory financial statements
Adjustment to opentng balance at 31 March
Infrastructure renewals expenditure capitahsed in the year
At 31 March 2007 per statutory finanaal statements

Grants and contnbutions

At 31 March 2007 per regulatery financial statements
Adjustment to operung balance at 31 March

At 31 March 2007 per statutory financial statements

Depreciation

At 31 March 2007 per regulatory financial statements
Adjustment to cpering balance at 31 March

Depreciation charge for infrastructure renewals expenditure
At 31 March 2007 per statutory financial statements

Net book value

At 31 March 2007 per regulatory finanaal statements
Adjustment to opening balance at 31 March

Infrastructure renewals expenditure capitahsed in the year
Depreciation charge for infrastructure renewals expenditure
At 31 March 2007 per statutory finanaal statements

Infrastructure renewals prepayment

At 31 March 2007 per regulatory finanaial statements
Less infrastructure renewals prepayment

At 31 March 2007 per statutory finanaal statements

Working capital

Stocks

Trade debtors — measured household

Trade debtors - unmeasured household
Trade debtors — measured non-household
Trade debtors - unmeasured non-household
Other trade debtors

Measured income accrual

Prepayments and other debtors

Trade creditors

Deferred income — customer advance receipts
Short-term capilal creditors

Accruals and other ereditors

Total working capital

Infrastructure
assets
£m

18,695 4
(16,209 1}
703
2,556 6

(200 7)
(200 7}

(535 1_)
(52 5}
(587 6}

18,695 4
(16,944 9)
703

(52 5)
1,768 3

541
(54 1}

2006
2007 restated
£m fm

"7 106
339 -
377 -
178 -
53 -
234 1191
836 261
66 62
(77 8) (56 3}
{1142} (104 4}
(59 9) (49 8}
{106 3) (94 3}

(1322) (142 8)

The prior year comparatives have been restated to reflect the disclosure changes as required by RAG 3 06




7 Net debt analysis
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Interest rate risk profile at 31 March 2007

Loans and other borrowings
Less than one year

Between one and two years
Between two and five years
Between five and twenty vears
In more than twenty years
Tota! borrowings

Cash

Short-term deposits

Net debt

Interest rate nsk profile at 31 March 2006

Loans and other borrowings
Less than one year

Between one and two years
Between two and five years
Between five and twenty years
In more than twenty years
Total borrowings

Cash

Short-term deposits

Net debt

Current cost profit and loss account

At beginning of the year
Loss for the year

Indexation adjustment’

Actuarial gatns recognised in pension scheme
Deferred tax relating to pension scheme
Deferred tax on share based payments

At end of year

' The RP) adjustment relates to a brought forward indexation difference in the opening reserves

Inclex floating Fued
Total hnked rate rate
£m £m £m fm
(78 6) 06 (50 0) (29 2)
{239 3) {13 3} (150 0} (76 0}
{390 2) 18 - (392 0}
(1,764 3) (8941 (1950 (6752}
(1,9777) (1,257 0) - {7207}
(4,450 1} (2,162 0) (3950) (1,893 1)
663
2829
{4,100 9)
Index Hoating Fixed
Total linked rate rate
£m fm fm fm
(2024) {(1499) - {52 9}
{28 6) 05 - (29 1)
(488 3) (161 3) - (3270}
(1,8821) (72150 (3440) (8166}
(1,4374) (7169 — {720 5}
(4,0388) (17487 (344 0) {1.9461)
393
461 2
(3,538 3)
2007 2006
£m £m
853 1058
{2079 {85 8)
(122 4) 200
(20) -
14 8 880
51 (26 5)
- 38
{114 7) 853
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Notes to the current cost financial statements continued

Movement on current cost reserve

2007 2006
fm fm
At beginning of the year 17,0498 16,6341
RP1 adjustments
— Fixed assets 1,009 3 482 7
— Working capital (6 9) 179
- Finanaing 69 (69 5}
— Grants and third party contributions (32 9) (15 4}
At end of year 18,0262 17,0498
(a) Reconciliation of current cost operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities for the appointed
business
2007 2006
frn £m
Current cost operating profit 3147 257 6
Working capital adjustrment 69 179
Movement in working capital (26 0) {14 6)
Current cost depreciation 2269 2199
Current cost profit on sale of fixed assets 17 (0 2}
Infrastructure renewals charge 525 510
Other non-cash items - 6 2)
Movement In provisions {4 8) -
Net cash flow from operating activities 5547 525 4
{b) Analysis of net debt
1 Apnl Non-cash 31 March
2006 Cash flows movements 2007
fm tm Em Em
Cash 393 270 - 66 3
Deposits and investments 461 2 (178 3} - 2829
Finance leases due within one year (23 9) 239 (27 2} (27 2)
Finance leases due after one year (92 5) - 272 (65 3)
Other debt due within one year {178 5) 124 8 23 (51 4
Other debt due after one year (3,7439) (496 5) {65 8) (4,306 2)
(3.5383) (4991} (635 (41009

Non-cash movements compnise indexation of index linked loan stock, indexation of Retail Price Index {RPI} swaps, transfers
between categories of debt, repayments made by Anglian Water Services Financing Plc, amortisation of discounts and

expenses relating to debt 1ssue costs and amortisation of ‘mark to market” adjustments




Supplementary regulatory information

Requlatory capital value (RCV)

Opening RCV for the year

Capital expenditure (excluding IRE)

Infrastructure renewals expenditure {IRE}

Grant and contnbutions

Depreciation

Infrastructure renewals charge

Qutperformance of regulatory assumptions {five years in arrears)
Closing RCV

Average RCV

85

2007
fm

47180
3260
566
(16 8)
(208 6)
(49 3)
(31 4)

4,794 5

4,661 6

RCV figures are extracted from those pubhshed by Ofwat on 26 Apnl 2006 1n their RDOS/06 letter at 2005/6 prices

These have been indexed upwards to 2006/7 prices using an RPI factor of 204 4/195 0 (RPI at 31 March 2007/RPI
at 31 March 2006) 1o give the current year figures in the 1able excluding average RCY The average RCV 1s derived

by iIndexing the average RCV pubhshed in RDO8/06 by the RPI factor of 200 3/193 1 (average RPI for the year ended

31 March 2007/average RPI for the year ended 31 March 2006} The indices that have been used to inflate the
RCV's to 2006/7 prices have been extracted from those published by Ofwat on 26 Apnl 2007 as per RD09/07
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Independent auditors’ report

We have audited the Regulatory Accounts of Anghan Water Services Limited ("the Company’) on pages 65 1o 84
which comprise

The regulatory historical cost accounting statements comprising the regulatory histoncal cost profit and loss account,

the regulatory historical cost statement of total recognised gains and losses and the regulatory histoncal cost balance sheet
The regulatory current cost accounting statements for the appointed business compnstng the current cost profit and
loss account, the current cost balance sheet, the current cost cash flow statement and the related notes including the
statement of accounting policies

This report 1s made, on terms that have been agreed, solely to the Company and the Water Services Regulation Authorty
{"the WSRA'} 1n order to meet the requirements of Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment granted by the Secretary
of State for the Environment to the Company as a water and sewage undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 {'the
Regulatory bicence’} Qur audit work has been underntaken so that we might state to the Company and the WSRA those
matters that we have agreed to state to them in our report, tn order (a) to assist the Company to meet its obligation
under the Regulatory Licence to procure such a report and (b) to facilitate the carnang out by the WSRA of its regulatory
functions, and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the WSRA, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed

Basis of preparation

The Regulatery Accounts have been prepared in accordance with Condition F of the Appointment and the Regulatory
Accounting Guidelines, the accounting pohicies set out in the statement of accounting peolicies and, In the case of the
regulatory histoncal cost accounting statements, under the historical cost convention

The Regulatory Accounts are separate from the statutory financial statements of the Company There are differences
between United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Prinaples (UK GAAP') and the basis of preparation of
information provided in the Regulatory Accounts as the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines specify alternative treatment
or disclosure in certain respects Where the Regulatory Accounting Guidehines do not speafically address an accounting
1ssue, then they require UK GAAP to be followed Financal information other than that prepared wholly on the basis
of UK GAAP may not necessarly represent a true and fair view of the financial performance or financial position of

a company as shown in financial statements prepared 1n accordance with the Companies Act 1985

Respective responsibilities of the WSRA, the directors and auditors

The nature, form and cantent of Regulatory Accounts are deterrmined by the WSRA It 15 not appropniate for us to assess
whether the nature of the information being reported upon is surtable or appropnate for the WSRA's purposes
Accordingly we make no assessment

The directors” responsibilities for preparning the Regulatory Accounts in accordance with Regulatory Accounting Guidelines
are set out In the Statement of directors' responsibilities for regulatory information on page 63

Our responsibifity 1s to audit the Regulatory Accounts in accordance with Internationat Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland} ssued by the Auditing Practices Board, except as stated in the "Basis of audit opimion®, below and having regard
to the guidance contained in Audit §5/03 ‘Reporting to Regulators of Regulated Entities’

We report to you our opinion as 1o whether the regulatory histoncal cost accounting statements present fairly, under
the histonical cost convention, the revenues and costs, assets and habilities of the appointee and its appointed business
in accordance wath the Company’s Instrument of Appointment and Regulatory Accounting Guideline 2 03 (Guideline for
classification of expenditure), Regulatory Accounting Guidehne 3 06 (Guideline for the contents of regulatory accounts)
and Regulatory Accounting Guidelne 4 03 {Guideline for the analysis of operating costs and assets), and whether the
regulatory current cost accounting statements on pages 74 to 84 have been properly prepared in accordance with
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 1 04 {Guideline for accounting for current costs and regulatory capital values),
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3 06 and Regulatory Accounting Guideline 4 03 We also report to you If, in our
optnion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records as required by paragraph 3 of Condition F and whether
the informaticn 1s in agreement with the appointee’s accounting records and has been properly prepared in accordance
with the requirements of Condition F and, as appropriate, Regulatory Accounting Guideline 1 04, Regulatory Accounting
Guidehne 2 03, Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3 06 and Regulatory Accounting Guideline 4 03

We read the other information contained in the Regulatory Accounts, including any supplementary schedules on which
we do not express an audit opiion, and consider the imphications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the Regulatory Accounts The other information compnses the performance
review, the notes on regulatory information, and the additional information required by the Company’s Regulatory Licence
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Basis of audit opiion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board except as noted below An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of endence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the Regulatory Accounts [t also includes an assessment of the sigmificant estimates
and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the Regulatory Accounts, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the company’s crcumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Regulatory Accounts
are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error However, as the nature,
form and content of Regulatory Accounts are determined by the WSRA, we did not evaluate the overall adequacy
of the presentation of the information, which would have been required if we were to express an audit opimven
under Internationat Standards on Auditing (UX and lreland}

Qur oprnion on the Regulatory Accounts 1s separate from our opimign on the statutory financial statements of the
Company on which we report, which are prepared for a different purpose Our audit report in relation to the statutory
accounts of the Company (our ‘Statutory’ audit) was made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance
with section 235 of the Comparies Act 1985 Qur Statutory audit work was undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in a Statutory auditor’s report and for no other
purpose In these circumstances, to the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume any responsibiity
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our Statutory audit work, for our
Statutory audit report, or for the opimions we have formed in respect of that Statutory audit

The regulatory historical cost accounting statements on pages 65 to 67 have been drawn up in accordance with
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3 06 1n that infrastructure renewals accounting as apphed in previous years should
continue to be applied and accordingly that the relevant sections of Financial Reporting Standards 12 and 15 be
disapplied The effect of this departure from Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, and a reconciliation of the
balance sheet drawn up on this basis with that drawn up under Companies Act 1985 1s given on page 82

Opimen

In our opinion the Regulatory Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2007 fairly present in accordance
with Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment granted by the Secretary of State for the Environment to the Company
as a water and sewerage undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991, the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 1ssued by
the WSRA and the accounting policies set out on pages 77 and 78, the state of the Company's affairs at 31 March 2007
on an histoncal cost and current cost basis, the histoncal cost and current cost profit for the year and the current cost cash
flow for the year and have been properly prepared in accordance with those conditions, guidelines and accounting policies

In respect of this information we report that in cur opinion

proper accounting records have been kept by the appointee as required by paragraph 3 of Condition F of the instrument,
the information is in agreement with the appointee’s accounting records and has been properly prepared in accordance
with the requirements of Condition F and, as appropriate, Regulatory Accounting Guideline 1 04, Regulatory Accounting
Guideline 2 03, Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3 06 and Regulatory Accounting Guideline 4 03 1ssued by the WSRA,
the regulatory histoncal cost accounting statements on pages 65 to 67 present farrly, under the histornical cost convention,
the revenues and costs, assets and habilities of the appaintee and its appointed business in accordance wath the Company’s
Instrument of Appmntment and Regulatory Accounting Gundeline 2 03, Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3 06 and
Regulatory Accounting Gundeline 4 03 1ssued by the WSRA,

the regulatory current cost accounting statements on pages 74 to 84 have been properly prepared in accordance with
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 1 04, Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3 06 and Regulatory Accounting Guidehne 4 03
issued by the WSRA

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

Birmingham
15 June 2007

! The maintenance and integniy of the Company web site 15 the respansibility of the directors and the maintenance and integnty of the Regulator's web site
1s the responsibility of the Regulator the work carned out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly the auditors
accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the Regulatory Accounts since they were initially presented on the web sites

2 Legistation in the United Kingdom goverrung the preparation and dissemination of financial statements and Regulatory Accounts may differ from
legislation in other junisdictions
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Glossary

AMP adjustment ~ The revision In the real value of fixed assets anising penodically from improved information notably
in the five-year Asset Management Plan process

Appomnted business — The appointed business comprises the regulated actwities of the company which are actvities
necessary in order for a company to fulfil the function and duties of a water and sewerage undertaker under the Water
Industry Act 1991

Arm's-length trading - Arm's-length trading 1s where the company treats the assoctate comparues on the same basis
as external third parties

Asset Management Plan (AMP) - A plan agreed with Ofwat on a five-yearly basis for the management of water and
wastewater assets The plan runs for a five-year penod AMP3 covered the investment peniod April 2000 to March 2005
AMP4 covers the investment penod Apnl 2005 to March 2010

Associate company — Condition A of the Licence defines an associate company to be any group or related company
Condition F of the Licence requires all transactions between the company and 1ts associated companies to be disclosed
subject 1o speafied matenality considerations

Final deterrmunation — This 15 the conclusion of discussions on the scale and content of the asset management plan

for the forthcoming five-year peniod 1t 1s accompanied by a determination of the allowable 'K’ factor for the forthcoming
five-year period

Finanang adjustment — The impact of general inflation (RPI) on the real value of net finance for the business

K factor — The annual increase, set by Ofwat, in charges that companies in the water industry can make The amount
by which a company can increase {or must decrease) its charges 1s controlled by the prce birit formula RP1 + or — K + U
RP1 15 expressed as the percentage increase in the Retail Price Index in the year to Novernber before the charging year

‘K’ 1s a number determined by Ofwat for each company, usually at a price review, for each year to reflect what it needs
above or below inflation in order to finance the prowsion of services to customers and ‘U’ 1s the amount of ‘K’ not taken
up by a company in previous years

Licence ~ The Instrument of Appointment dated August 1989 under Section 11 and 14 of the Water Act 1989 {(as in
effect on 1 August 1989) under which the Secretary of State for the Environment appointed Anglian Water Services
Lirmited as a water and sewerage undertaker under the Act for the areas described in the Instrument of Appointment,
as modified or amended from time to tme

Modern Equivalent Asset (MEA) — The cost of an asset of equivalent productive capability 10 satisfy the remaining
service potential of the asset being valued if the asset would be worth replacing, or the recoverable amount if It would not
The gross MEA value 1s what 1t would cost to replace an old asset wath a technically up to date new asset with the same
service capability allowing for any difference both in the quality of output and in operating costs The net MEA value

i1s the depreciated value taking into account the remaining service potential of an old asset compared with a new asset,
and 1s stated gross of third party contnbutions

Non-appointed business - The non-appointed business actmvties of the company are activities for which the company
as a water and sewerage undertaker 1s not @ monopoly suppher (for example, the sale of laboratory services 10 an external
organisation) or involves the optional use of an asset owned by the company (for example, the use of underground assets
for cable television)

Ofwat - The name used to refer to the Water Services Regulation Authonty (WSRA) The WSRA acts as the economic
requlator of the water industry

Periodic Review — The price determination process undertaken by Ofwat every five years Each water and sewerage
undertaker submits an Asset Management Plan covering the five-year penod for which Ofwat will determune prices

{the X factor - see above)

Price hmit — This 1s the name given to the combination of the Retarl Price Index (RPI), 'K’ and 'U”

Regulatory Accounting Guidelines {RAG}) ~ The accounting guidelines for regulatory accounts issued, and amended
from time to time, by Ofwat

Retail Price Index (RPI) — The RPI 1s compiled and published monthly by the Office for National Statistics RPI1s an average
measure of change in the prices of goods and services bought for the purpese of consumption by the vast majonty of
households in the United Kingdom

Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) - The capital base used in setting price imits The value of the appointed business that
earns a return on investment It represents the imbial market value (200-day average), including debi at privatisation, plus
subsequent net new capital expenditure induding new obligations imposed since 1989 The capital value 15 calculated
using the Ofwat methodology (ie after current cost depreciation and infrastructure renewals accrual)

Third party contributions since 1989/90 — Grants and third party contnbutions receved 1n respect of infrastructure
assets and any deferred income relating to grants and third party contributions for nan-infrastructure assets

Working capital ~ The aggregate of stocks, trade debtors and trade creditors, if matenal

Waorking capital adjustment — The impact of general inflation (RPI) on the real value of working capital to the business
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